


AA LIMITED
CHAIRMAN’S FOREWORD

This has been another year of rapid progress at the AA _The financial story Is an impressive one revenue Increased by
52% (6 7% on a ike-for-like basis) and operating profit’ by 28 8% Over the last two years, the picture is even better,
with operating profit’ almost doubling

Cur improved profitability has been denved as much from growth as it has been from cost reducttion  Dunng 2006 the
business completed a major restructuning, and at the same time has embarked on a programme of investment that will
support growth in the future

The AA 1s now operating more efficiently, in paricular central costs are significantly lower, and productivity has
increased sharply in our Roadside Operations However, the investments made by the business are also improving the
expenence of our custoemers Here are just two examples the new Vehicle Recovery System (VRS) being installed
across the patrol fleet will enable our patrols to recover more unfixed breakdowns, saving customers tme and
Improving service, and improvements to our systems will allow our insurance customers to renew policies online, saving
them time and increasing retention

The AA has reinvested a proportion of its efficiency savings into marketing and the Company's successful advertising
campaigns are now dnving record sales onhine and increased calls into our call centres | am convinced that our
decision to maintain our call centre operations in the UK was nght, if not the lowest cost option in the short term, and
this 1s reflected in the positive response of many AA customers

2006 will be remembered for its hot summer, and our patrols demonstrated why they are the bedrock of the business on
some extremely busy days | would like to congratulate all of the AA’s staff for their dedication to the needs of our
customers, whether by the side of the road or in the demanding environment of our call centres  The AA has won a
number of awards this year for customer service, marketing, finance, fleet operations and HR and these are a nchly
deserved tnbute to all our people

Dunng the year, we took a decision that we would once again operate our own Public Affairs team as we have for the
majonty of our 100 year history As a consequence, the AA's invotvement with the AA Motoning Trust came to a close
at the end of 2006 We are pleased that the Trust's chantable activiies will be taken forward by the much respected
chanty, The Institute of Advanced Motonsts As part of re-establishing an AA Public Affairs team, the AA wili be forming
an external Advisory Group of experts to help ensure that policy on motonng affairs remains independent and informed

In addition, the AA has taken the decision to be one of the UK’s first pnvate companes to move to IFRS as the basis of
preparation for its financial statements

In 2006 the AA acquired Direct Choice, a successful and growing Insurance broker The management team 1s now
looking at other opportunities to develop the business, organically and by acquisiton  We have always believed that the
AA, as the UK’s premier motonng brand, has many exciting growth opporturities  Some first steps have been taken to
realise this potential — with prormusing results  The Board 1s confident of trading prospects in the year ahead, as well as
the successful expansion of the Group’s activities in the medium term

! Excluding terminated remnsurance contract {see page 7)
? Before amortisation of intangible assets and exceptional items



AA LIMITED

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS

This Annual Report reviews the second full year of the programme of transformation following the acquistion of the AA In
2004

Dunng this last year, many of the projects started in 2005 have been completed, with significant improvements to the
efficiency of the AA’s operations However, the main thrust of 2006 has been to reinvigorate the revenue line of the
business and to implement a major programme of investment designed to strengthen the long-term competitiveness of the
AA This has included several important systems replacements and changes to the way people work, that will improve the
expenence of our customers  An important theme of 2006 has been further investment in marketing spend by our two core
activities of breakdown and insurance, particulanly online Last year also saw the first acquisition by the AA for several
years Direct Choice 1s already making a significant contnbution to the success of AA Insurance

| am pleased to report that this renewed momentum in the marketplace has contnbuted to the strong trading of the Group
dunng 2006 Revenue increased by 5 2% (6 7% on a kke-for-like basis') and operating profit® increased from £195 3m to
£251 6m, a nse of 28 8% Profit after tax for the year was £36 Om representing an increase of £95 3m on 2005

The operating profit’ of Roadside Services rose 25 2% from £138 7m to £173 7m, operating profit’ in Insurance Services

increased by 59 8% from £38 1m to £60 9m  Other businesses collectively contnbuted £12 1m in 2008, up from £7 Om in
2005

Exceptiona! charges fell sharply in 2006 to £25 3m from £121 1mn 2005 Ths reflects the more hmited restructunng
activites dunng 2006, and fewer changes to operations

The Group was again strongly cash generatve, with a net cash inflow from continuing operational activities (but before
exceptional items) of £256 4m (2005 £214 1m)

These results are especially pleasing in view of the unusually high level of breakdowns attended dunng 2006 It was a year
of meteorological extremes with long hot spells in the summer and several bouts of heavy rain or intense cold These
contnbuted to an increase of 4% in breakdown cases over 2005, an interruption to the longer-term, downward trend

The year saw the economics of unsecured personal lending change fundamentally An increase in the number of people
opting for Individual Voluntary Arrangements (IVAs) was the main cause of nsing bad debt provisions Commissions from
insurance-related products are also in decline  These factors, in conjunction with generally more competitive conditions, led
to a fall in the AA's share of profit in the joint venture with HBOS, from £12 6m te £5 1m

Discussions are now under way with HBOS with a view to the development of a less votatile business model that takes
account of changing conditions in the marketplace

Dunng the course of the year we steadily improved service levels by the side of the road and in our call centres  The
conclusion of the restructunng programmes in 2005 resulted in leaner staffing levels and this left us exposed when demand
rose above forecast levels in the early months of 2006 We have responded by increasing the number of patrols and staff in
our call centres to a leve! that can mere readily absorb such unforeseen spikes in demand There have been some strains
placed cn the system but as we enter 2007, we are exceeding our service delivery targets

Productivity in the AA’s patrol force remains high, and we have built on some of the changes made dunng 2005 to improve
the delivery of the service 'We have more flexibility in planning working hours, and tmprovements have also been made to
the demand forecasting process We have started a programme to renew and standardise the vehicle fleet, introducing
innovative new technology that will dnve improvements :n the member expenence

We have had an excellent year in AA Insurance Competition continues to be fierce in the personal lines market, but our
tnsurance busmness has made good progress Motor sales have been dnven by effective advertising campaigns and also
the rapidly developing aggregator sector The motor portfolio has grown by 4 7% to 1,034,388 policies, and our portfolio of
home policies has increased shightly by 0 5% to 643,876 Dunng the year, we also launched two new products commercial
vehicle and motorcycle

There has been significant growth of business online 1n 2006 The AA website has been redesigned, with much simpler and
easler navigation through transactional pages The results have been encouraging over 18% of personal membership s
sold online and the web now accounts for in excess of 40% of insurance policy sales The AA website 1s one of the most
frequently-visited commercial websites in the UK (placed 95 amongst all websites visited by UK residents by Hitwise i
December) with over 154 mitlion wisitors a year to the Routes and Maps facility The new travel portal, allowing visitors to
access a range of additional infformation on any destination, 1s also praving popular

! Excluding terminated rensurance contract (see page 7)
? Before amortisation of intangible assets and exceptional items




AA LIMITED

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS (continued)

Dunng 2006, the AA made a substantial investment in IT projects with a total spend of £37m A wide-ranging
programme to overhaul the desktop platform nght across the business, at a cost of £17m, was completed Systems
replacements, many long overdue, were made to every area of the business and in addition, the AA changed both its
mobile and fixed telecoms network An extensive programme to support pnce optimisation in Insurance has gone well,
and further progress has been made to update the Insurance call centre systems This will make it much easier to
manage information required to generate quotations and also to make cross-sales

The AA’s marketing campaigns have provided strong impetus to sales across the product range  The “You've Got AA
Friend" campaign has underpinned the highest membership sales perfformance since 2003 The "AA Team” campaign
has developed the AA’s distinctive message of getting the best value insurance for customers from a large pane! of
underwnters

The AA’s other operations have also performed very well dunng 2006 The Dnving School made good progress with a
new commercial model increasing operating profit by 52 6%, and the Publishing business, benefiting from an exciting
range of new titles, hited operating profit by 184 6% AA Ireland posted an increase n oparating profit of 43 6%

The performance of our business would not have been possible without the positive role played by our Central Support
teams in IT, Finance, HR and Legal The outstanding nature of these teams 1s winning external recognition through
several awards — two good examples are the award of “Business Finance Team of 2006” by Accountancy Age and “HR
Excellence Award 2006" by HR Magazine

It1s our view that the investments made dunng the course of the last year have laid a secure foundation for growth in
the future The market for breakdown services 1s competitive, but the AA has the UK’s largest patrol force and a brand
which 15 emblematic of motoring  As we frequently remind ourselves, there are an estimated 8 milion people who do
not have breakdown cover, and we have firm plans to recruit an even higher proportion of young motonsts

AA Insurance 1s the UK’s largest personal hnes insurance broker, and one of the top 5 insurance brands With a strong
pricing proposition and an efficient underwnting purchasing model, the business now has firm momentum in the
marketpiace

Having remoulded the business, our pronties for the future are to develop our core activities, and to seek new
oppontunites for growth through acquisiion We also see great potential for the AA as the leading brand for motornng-
related business online

| commented last year that the AA 1s more than just a business, and that our company cccupies a unigue position in the
British motonng landscape We are entirely dependent on our people for this enviable reputation, whether based in the
office or patrolling the roads | would like to thank everyone for another year of great endeavour on behalf of our
members and customers

Roadside Services

Dunng the year the AA attended 3 6 million breakdowns, up 4% on 2005 This was dnven partly by increased
membership but predominantly by the extra demand expenenced across the industry due to extremely hot weather in
the summer Despite this sharply increased workload, our patrols coped valiantly and response times were similar to
last year, with over 90% of jobs completed by the patrol who first attended Productivity continued to improve across all
areas of Road Operations, with repair rates nsing above 79%

We have slightly increased our Personal membership holding, following the sigruficant mvestments made in 2005 This
means that 2006 marks the first year in the last four in which the Personal membership holding has not declined In
total, the hotding grew by 0 7% in 2006

New business sales volumes have increased by an encouraging 11% The re-launch of the Direct Sales Force early in
the year has been a major contnbutor, with sales performance improving every quarter dnven by headcount growth,
new site development and maintaining productivity levels The team have been shorthsted in the “Direct Sales Team of
the Year" category at the 2007 National Sates Awards The intemet channel grew strongly in 2006 up 34% on 2005
This has been dnven by Increases in marketing investment at key points of the year as well as improvements in onting
sales processes We have also added new customer funchionality to our website in 2006, with further development
planned for 2007 In May, we jomed the Nectar scheme, and continue to dnve revenue generating opportunities
through this channel

We launched our second “You've Got AA Frend" brand campaign, building on 2005's campaign to raise brand
consideration levels by focusing on our key differentator ~ the scale and quality of our patrol force  The campaign was
well received, delivenng the highest tracking scores of all recent AA advertising and also exceeding the highest
benchmark in other motor and non-motor categones The AA came 36" out of 500 in the UK’s Superbrands survey in
2006 and in Apnl, we were named as “the most trusted brand” in the UK motonng category by the Reader’s Digest
magazine




AA LIMITED

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS (continued)
Roadside Services (continued)

Call centre restructunng has allowed us to handle more calls, with fewer people and with better service levels in 2006
than before We have made significant investment in our call centre infrastructure, completing a refurbishment of the
Cheadle sife as well as delivenng IT investment projects In addition, our sales and upgrade conversion rates are at an
all ttrme hugh, despite strong competiton We were finalists in the Call Centre Association, Call Centre of the Year
Awards in 2006 and one of our managers I1s a finalist in the “Sales Leader of the Year” category at the 2007 National
Sales Awards Our back office and administration department, Member Care, has been relocated from Basingstoke to
Cheadle, delivering a significant improvement in customer response levels as well as an additional, multi-skilled
resource to deal with peaks in telephony demand The telemarketing department was also brought back onshore into
Cheadle in May The transition was seamless and we are now delvenng excellent results There 1s a significant
amount of work under way to optimise this channet, which will be a key strand in delivenng sales and service in 2007

The AA Members Club was launched in early 2006 to reinforce the benefits of AA Membershup to our members  As
part of this initiative, we have distnbuted nearly 11 millon member magazines, making this the second largest
membership magazine publication in the UK This intiative has delivered significant growth in redemption of member
discounts, internal cross-sales and improved the retention of customers who receive the magazine

Wae re-launched our previous Parts & Labour Cover product as Breakdown Repair Cover in March The new product
provides significant customer benefits compared to the previous one, and we have seen substantial Improvements in
sales as a result

Our Business Services team enjoyed a year of rapid growth with sales increasing 9% This reflected the impact of new
contracts won in 2005, namely Ford, Peugeot, Citroen, Lombard and Leaseplan, as well as holdings growth on the
Lloyds TSB contract Dunng 2006 we were unsuccessful in renewing the VW Group account which includes the VW,
SEAT and Skoda brands However, part of this shortfall will be made up by the ARC pan European Mercedes contract
won towards the end of the year

The team also won a number of awards dunng 2006

o Fleet Excellence Awards 20086 - “Best Vehucle Recovery” & “Best Service Suppler”
o Fleet News Awards — “Best Breakdown Service Company”
¢ Institute of Transport Management — “Breakdown and Recovery Company 2006”

in April, we implemented a four-year fleet replacement programme with an investment of nearly £15 million which walt
see all the patrol and recovery vehicles replaced with a new livenied vehicle The new roadside patrol vans are
equipped with new, bespoke technology — Vehicle Recovery System (VRS) — that enables recovery of the majonty of
cars by the attending patrol This facilitates a ‘one-stop shop’ by our own, dedicated patrols which research confirms i1s
an important factor for our members In September, we launched the AA Academy Apprenticeship programme, In
collaboration with the apprentice learming division of Carter & Carter Group plc, one of the leading providers of
government funded learning for the motor industry  This type of investment in the future will ensure the nght skills and
resources are avallable within the motor industry

We have completed our call centre consolidation, increasing the number of Teleworkers and we have updated our
mapping, location and diagnostic capabilites This reflects a significant investment in technology along with savings on
occupancy costs

Insurance Services

In 2006, AA Insurance has successfully built on the foundations laid down in 2005 Having returned to growth in the
previous year, the business in 2006 has seen an increase In customers for all key products and the continued
expansion in the range of products

Private motor customer numbers broke through the 1 million bamer in March (for the first ime since the mid-90's) and
have grown every week since March 2005 Similarly, the histonc dechne in household policy numbers that was
arrested in 2005 resumed growth in 2006 with total policies now just short of 650,000

Cross-sales remain a real focus for AA Insurance, with not only the traditonal routes of motor to home and vice versa
being maximised, but also exptoting the opportunities for the sale of AA Roadside membership  The net result of our
customer service focus 1s that retention remains very strong with over 4 out of 5 people choosing to renew their policies
with us

As the year progressed, AA Insurance re-entered two key markets motorcycle insurance and commercial vehicle
insurance These completed the product range enabling us to offer a full service to all our customers In less than a full
year's trading, just under 5,000 customers have chosen to place their motorcycle or commercial vehicle insurance with
us, showing the relevance, competitiveness and quality of these offers




AA LIMITED

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS (continued)
Insurance Services {continued)

The acquisition of Direct Chaice in 2006 complements our offenng to customers, banging a new brand to deploy
tactically in the marketpiace, particularly in the expanding aggregator space

Following our restructunng in 2005, the benefits both in terms of cost and performance are now being realised We now
have the depth and quality of people to provide supenor levels of customer service that will ultimately provide real
differentiation for AA Insurance The performance and professtonalism of our employees has also received extemnal
recognition and dunng the year, AA Insurance won the following awards

s Insurance Times — “Personal Lines Broker of the Year”
+  Cardiff Customer Service Unit won “Customer Services Award” at the Welsh Contact Centre Awards
¢« Review Centre website users chose AA Insurance as — “Best Car Insurer 2006"

Personal Finance

The AA has operated a Joint venture with HBOS for over 23 years with the main products being unsecured personal
lending in the form of credit cards and loans Dunng 2006, we have commenced a strategic review of the joint venture
given the volatility of eamings created by industry-wide problems around personal indebtedness and the rapid increase
and availability of IVAs in the UK market

While 2006 was a difficult year wath total new gross lending falling 15% to £900m, our acquisition costs are reducing
significantly as we develop increasingly effective marketing tools and we optimise our channel strategy  Our current
approach 1s to develop a pipeline of unique propositions such as the six month, free warranty offered with a car loan
Wae plan to imit growth in 2007 across all channels in order to reduce new business credit nsk and increase margins

The business opened over 28,000 new cards in the year, up 31% from 2005 Total card borrowing is up 15% on 2005
with acquistiion mainly via loan apphications There are plans for an improved online proposition and also an enhanced
offer to members

Other Businesses
Pubiishing

A streamhned management team has implemented a programme of restructunng Emphasis 1s on product innovation,
developing new channels to market and opening up emerging sales territories  As a result, and in spite of tough trading
conditions on the UK High Street, AA Publishing increased its operating proﬁt1 by 184 6% for 2006

Focus for the Intemational Sales team I1s on new market opportunibies in Scandinavia and Latin Amenca and the new
product development programme has seen encouraging inital results — “The Guest List” featured on the “Richard and
Judy Chnstmas Book Club” on Channel 4 Podcasts and downloadable travel guides are also under development !

AA Publishing has continued to attract accolades

ESRI User Conference - “Special Achievement Award” for its cartographic database system |
Bntish Cartographic Society Awards — “Commended” for its Electronic Mapping |
Ordnance Survey Commercial and Partner Alliance Programme 2006 — nominated as “Platinum Partner of the

Year

Almost £1m was spent on theAA com/travel web portal in 2006, further extending the appeal of the successful Route
Planner which served 154 milion routes this year

! Before amortisation of intangible assets and exceptional items




AA LIMITED

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS (continued)
Other Businesses {continued)

Driving School

In 2006, revenue increased by 21% and operating profit' rose 52 6% This was an excellent result, and was due, in the
main, to the re-launch of the instructor franchise package introduced at the beginning of the year Instructor holdings
rose by 6% in the year to end on the highest holdings figure in Dnving School's 16 year history

Qver the year, pupil numbers increased by 16%, dnven mainly by a 5 paint increase in contact centre call conversion
This was aided by strong performance from the website, assisted by the launch of a new online ‘leamn to dnive’
knowledge centre, pnmanly aimed at new dnivers The Dnving Instructor Training product, launched late in 2005, has
grown strongly and created a valuable pipeline of future AA franchise instructors  We also commenced trading in
Northern Ireland and invested significantly more on awareness and online marketing

Dunng the year, Dnving School completed the majonty of the work on an IT programme that will revolutionise the
existing operating platform and supporting call centre technology Completion 1s scheduled for May 2007

Signs

AA signs maintained its position as market leader in event road signage and erected over 76,000 temporary road signs
across the UK in 2006,

New contracts this year included the Leeds Festival and the Bnstol half marathon while retaining prestigious events
such as Royal Ascot and Wimbledon

We developed new sign design, schedule and mapping software and began imglementing a new signs manufactunng
process — all providing sigmificant benefits for the coming year

Republic of Irefand

Operating profit' increased 43 6% on last year reflecting strong sales growth across the businesses Total Membership
holding increased by 27% in 2006 to 396,000, another record year for membership growth

The first full year for the Ford contract made a significant contnbution, and we also won the accounts for Volkswagen,
Audi and Skoda The Personal Membership holding has grown by 8% in 2008, and, more encouragingly, the number of
members opting for the full package grew by 14% The growth in holding has, inevitably, resulted in increased demand
for the Breakdown Service and calls for assistance were up 19% on last year While this and the continuing severe
traffic congestion has been the cause of a shight reduction in our service level performance, plans are in place to ensure
improvements in 2007

The combined Insurance Portfolio 1s up 16% this year to 145,000 policyholders  Acquisitions added 8% to the portfolio
growth and organic growth added a further 8%

Towards the end of 2006, AA Finance was launched m the Republic of Ireland offening car loans and this wall be
extended to unsecured loans and credit cards in 2007

AA Ireland was the chosen partner for directional signs for the 2006 Ryder Cup and with AA Roadwatch playing its part
on radio, significant brand exposure was achieved

Conclusion

Our focus in the AA 1n 2008 has been to further improve and build on the changes we made in 2005 This has not been
without its challenges but our teams have worked hard throughout the year to overcome these and | am delighted with
the progress we are making  Our investment programme has enabled us to make significant improvements to our
operating efficiency, customer service and competitiveness not only now, but also in the long-term  There are exciting
growth opporturnties in the future for the AA to pursue and | look forward to reporting on our further progress in due
course

! Before amortisation of intangible assets and exceptional items




AA LIMITED

FINANCE DIRECTQOR’'S REVIEW
The full income statement for the year i1s set out on page 13

Summary of Results 2006 2006 2006 2005
Continuing  Acquisitions Total Total
operations

£m £m £m £m

Revenue

Roadside Services 5427 - 542 7 5251

Insurance Services excl AARe Churchill’ 168 4 85 176 9 152 3

Other Businesses 74 6 - 74 6 66 7

Total - excl AARe Churchill’ 7857 85 794 2 744 1

AA Reinsurance — Churchill Contract' - - - 110

Total 7857 85 794 2 755 1

Operating Profit
Before amortisation and exceptional items

Roadside Services 1737 - 1737 1387
Insurance Services 578 31 609 381
Personal Finance 49 - 49 115
Other Businesses 121 - 12 1 70
Total operating profit before amortisation of

intangible assets and exceptional tems 248 5 31 2516 195 3

Income statement
Trading resuits

Revenue on continuing operations was up by £41 6m to £785 7m (5 6%) Including 6 months results for Direct Choice,
revenue on continung operations increased by £50 1mto £794 2m (6 7%)

Operating profit on continuing operations before amortisation of intangible assets and exceptional tems of £248 5m
grew by £53 2m representing a 27 2% increase Including 6 months results for Direct Choice, operating profit before
amortisation of intangible assets and excepticnal items increased by £56 3m to £251 6m {up 28 8%) This
improvement was dnven by stronger results across all our businesses with the exception of our Personal Finance
business

Excepftional Items

Exceptiona! items duning the year amounted to £25 3m (2005 £121 1m) These related mainly to the completion of the
separation and transition programme from Centnca, IT systems changes within the Insurance business, and vanous
headcount reduction initiatives

Finance costs
Group net finance costs were £201 7m (2005 £209 2m), of which £150 8m {2005 £122 5m) related to interest on bank
loans and overdrafts £124 7m (2005 £94 7m) was payable in cash and £26 1m (2005 £27 8m) was capntalised

Following the refinancing of the Group’s borrowings on 15 March 2006, £545 O0m of Subordinated Preference
Certificates and £111 1m of bank borrowings were repaid and augmented by additional bank borrowings of £622 Om
This reduced the average funding costs on bank borrowings from 12 2% at 31 December 2005 to 9 3% at 31 December
2006 Further details of the Group's borrowings are in note 23

Taxation

The tax credit for the year on continuing operattons was £11 9m (2005 £67 9m) This 1s mainly due to a deferred tax
credit of £11 2m {2005 £69 3m) as the Group has benefited from the availability of brought forward tax losses and
capital allowances

Profit after tax

Overall, the Group made a profit after tax and discontinued operations of £36 Om (2005 loss after tax and discontinued
operations of £59 3m)

' The Group terminated its contract to reinsure a 50% quota share of the Churchill motor book on 4 May 2004 The
impact on operating profit was broadly neutral




AA LIMITED

FINANCE DIRECTOR'S REVIEW {continued)
Acquisitions

In July 2006, the Group completed the acquisihon of Direct Choice, an insurance intermediary for a consideration of
£57 8m Net of cash on the balance sheet, the consideration was £55 8m This gave nse to goodwill of £41 5m  This
acquisition contnbuted £3 1m to operating profit before amortisation of intangible assets and exceptional ttems dunng
the year

Cash Flow

The Group continues to be strongly cash generative on its operating activibes  Net cash inflow from continuing
operating activities and before exceptional items was £256 4m (2005 £214 1m) In addition the Group received £9 2m
(2005 £11 8m) of interest and £0 3m (2005 £6 0m) from the surrender of tax losses Of this, £103 5m (2005

£134 9m) was applied in exceptional items, £9 9m {2005 £16 5m) on discontinued operations and £185 8m (2005
£236 4m) in financing activites  There was a £55 4m cash outflow in respect of the acquisition of Direct Choice offset
by £10 Om (2005 £8 Om) receved as an adjustment to the consideration on the acquisition of AA Corporation Limited in
2004

Cash and cash equivalents and financial assets — short term deposits at the year end amounted to £112 6m {2005
£196 5m) of which £99 2m (2005 £104 tm) was held within the Group's insurance subsidianes to meet regulatory
requirements

Financial Risks

The Group 1s exposed to imited financial nsks  The Group's overall sk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential nsks for the Group The Board reviews and agrees
polcies for managing nsks  The most important components of financial nsk impacting the Group are nterest rate nsk,
credit nsk and hquidity nsk

Interest rate risk

The Group's income and operating cash flows, with the exception of the Personal Lending joint venture, are largely
independent of changes in interest rates Revenue from the Personal Lending joimnt venture 1s substantially denved from
products with fixed rates of interest The joint venture manages its interest rate risk by funding its business pnmanly
through fixed rate borrowings and matching, where possible, the term of its borrowings to the anticipated customer
repayment prcfile

The Group mainly finances its operations through bank borrowings The Group's borrowings are in sterling and at the
year end, LIBOR was fixed using interest rate swaps on £1,034 5m, representing 55% of the Group’s borrowings

Credit risk

Credit nsk 1s the nsk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when due The Group's policy 1s to limit
counterparty exposures by setting credit imits for each counterparty, where possible, by reference to published credit
ratings Surplus cash is invested in short-term financial nstruments and only deposited with counterparhes meeting a
minimum credit rating requirement set by the Board

Liquedity risk

Liquidity nsk 1s the nsk that cash may not be available to pay obligations when due  Cash forecasts identifying the
hquidity requirements of the Group are produced frequently These are reviewed regularly by the Board to ensure that
sufficient financial headroom exists for at least a 12 month penod The Group's policy includes maintaining a minimum
level of committed facilites and that a proportion of debt should be long-term, spread over a range of matunties As at
31 December 2006, the Group had undrawn committed facihties of £89 2m

Foreign currency nsk

The Group has hmited exposure to foreign currency nsk with one overseas subsidiary in the Republic of Ireland and
shareholdings in several Euro based entiies In addition, certain subsidianies are exposed to exchange rate
movements as a result of selling or purchasing in foreign currencies The pnncipal currencies to which the Group 1s
exposed are the Euro and the US Dollar The Board has reviewed the net exposure to foreign exchange nsk and has
concluded that no hedging 1s required This policy 1s subject to penodic review




AA LIMITED

FINANCE DIRECTOR'S REVIEW (continued)
Basis of preparation

UK lhisted companies are required to comply with the European regulation to repert consolidated financial statements in
conformity with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) from 1 January 2005 onwards

To facilitate a more consistent basis of interpretation with these companies, the AA has voluntanly elected to present its
consolidated results for the year ended 31 December 2006 on an IFRS basis and the comparative information for 2005
has been restated accordingly Note 38 to the financial statements summanses the impact of first tme adoption of IFRS
and provides a reconctliabion of the Group's IFRS balance sheet from 31 December 2004 on a UK GAAP basis to 1
January 2005 under IFRS




AA LIMITED

STATUTORY DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors present their report and audited financial statements of AA Limited (formerly AA Top Co Limited) for the
year ended 31 December 2006 The Company changed its name to AA Limited on 22 December 2006

DIRECTORS
The directors, who held office in the year, were as follows

Sir Trevor Chinn

Derek Ellott {resigned 24 QOctober 2006)
Pevenl Hooper {appointed 24 November 2006)
Jonathan Kaye (resigned 24 November 2006)
Robert Lucas

Philip Muelder (appointed 24 Qctober 2006)
Timothy Parker

Charles Sherwood

Paul Woolf

Details of the shareholdings and remuneration of the directors are included in note 34 to the financial statements

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group’s pnincipal actvities are the provision of roadside and financial services in the UK and Ireland

REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

A review of the business and future developments is contained in the Chief Executive’s Review of the Business on
pages 2 to 6 and the Finance Director's Review on pages 7 and 9

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the penod (2005 £nil} and accordingly, the profit for
the year 1s transferred to reserves

EMPLOYMENT POLICIES

ft1s the policy of the Group to ensure that all disabled people, whether registered or not, should receive full and farr
consideration for all appropnate job vacancies, training and development opportunities  Employees, who become
disabled duning employment, will be retained in employment wherever possible and will be given assistance with any
retraiming that s required

The Group 1s committed to keeping employees and their representatives fully informed on all matters affecting them
both of a financial and non-financial nature  This 1s achieved through a range of formal and informal brisfings,
publications and the use of electronic media

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Group contnbuted £2 1m (2005 £1 Om) to chanties, principally the AA Mofonng Trust, dunng the pernod There
were no poltical donations
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AA LIMITED

STATUTORY DIRECTORS' REPORT (continued)
STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
apphcable laws and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year that give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group and of the profit or loss of the Group for that penod
Under that law the directors have prepared group financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union, and the parent company financial statements in
accordance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards The directors are required to prepare the financial
statements on the going concern basis, unless it 1s inappropnate to presume that the Company and the Group will
continue In business

The directors confirm that suitable accounting policies have been used and consistently applied They also confirm
that reasonable and prudent judgements and estmates have been made in prepanng the financial statements for
the perod ended 31 December 2006 and that applicable accounting standards have been followed

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Company and the Group and to enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 1985 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
rregulanties

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

In the case of each of the persons who are directors at the time when the report 1s approved

+ So far as the director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit nformation (that 1s, information needed by the
Company's auditors in connection with prepanng their report) of which the Company’s auditors are
unaware, and

» The director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that
information

R CHINN
DIRECTOR
28 February 2007

Registered Office
Fanum House
Basing View
Basingstoke
Hampshire

RG21 4EA
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF AA LIMITED

We have audited the group financial statements of AA Limited for the year ended 31 December 2006 which comprise the
Consolidated Income Statement, the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, the
Consolidated Statement of Recognised Income and Expense and the related notes These group financial statements have
been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein

We have reported separately on the parent company financia! statements of AA Limited for the year ended 31 December
2006

Respective responsibiities of directors and auditors
The direclors’ responsibilities for prepanng the Annual Report and the group financial statements in accordance with

applcable law and Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union are set out in the
Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

Our responsibility 1s to audit the group financial statements i accordance with relevant tegal and reguiatory requirements
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only
for the Company's members as a body in accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and for no other
purpose  We do not, 1n giving thus opiruon, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to
whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent n wnting

We report to you our opinion as to whether the group financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the group
financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 We also report to you
whether in our opinson the information given in the Directors’ Report 1s consistent with the group financial statements

In addition we report to you If, In our opinion, we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our
audit, or if information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other transactions 1s not disclosed

We read other nformation contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it i1s consistent with the audited group
financial statements The other information compnises only the Statutory Directors’ Report, the Chairman'’s Foreword, the
Chief Executive's Review of the Business and the Finance Director's Review We consider the implications for our report if
we become aware of any apparent misstatements or matenal inconsistencies with the group financial statements Our
responsibilities do not extend to any other information

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing
Practices Board An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the
group financial statements It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the directors
In the preparation of the group financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the Group's
circumstances, consistently apphed and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the group financial statements are free from
matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregulanty or error In forming our opimon we also evaluated the
overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the group financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion

» the group financial statements give a true and fair iew, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union,
of the state of the Group’s affarrs as at 31 December 2006 and of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended,

» the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985, and
« the information given in the Drectors’ Report 1s consistent with the group financial statements

) sl

PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London

28 February 2007
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Notes

Continuing operations excluding

termmnated contract”
Terminated contract
Revenue 34
Operating expenses before

amortisation of intangible assets 5
Share of net profit of joint ventures and

associates 16
Operating profit before amortisation

of intangible assets
Amortisation of intangible assets 13
Operating profit 3
Finance income 8
Finance costs 9
Profit/{loss) before taxation
Taxation credit 10
Profit/(loss) after tax from

continuing operations
Profit from discontinued operations 11
Profit/(loss) for the year 29

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

AA LIMITED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006

2006 2006 2006 2005 2005 2005
Before Exception- Total Before Excephion- Total
excephonal al items exceptonal al iterms
items items

£m £m £m fm £m £m
794 2 - 794 2 7441 - 744 1
- - - 110 - 110
794 2 - 794 2 7551 - 7551

(547 7) (25 3) (573 0) (572 4) (121 1) {693 5)
51 - 51 126 - 12 6
2516 (25 3) 2263 195 3 (121 1) 742

(33) - 33 (33) - (33)
248 3 (25 3) 2230 192 0 {121 1) 709
206 194

(222 3) {228 6)

213 (138 3)

19 679

332 (70 4)

—28 _ 1t
360 !59 32

*The Group terminated its contract to reinsure a 50% quota share of the Churchill Motor book on 4 May 2004 The impact on operating

profit 1s broadly neutral
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AA LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF RECOGNISED INCOME AND EXPENSE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006

2006 2005
Notes £m £m
Actuanal gain recognised in the retirement benefit
obligation 26 1196 153
Deferred tax ansing on the actuanal gain n the
retrrement benefit cbigation 14 (357) (56)
Exchange translation differences 28 -
Cashflow hedges
Fair value gains 247 56
Recycled and reported in net profit {5 2) (50)
Deferred tax ansing on gains on cashfiow hedges 14 {58) 35
Net income recognised directly in equity 976 14 1
Profit/(loss) for the year 360 {59 3)
Total recognised incomef(expense) for the year 1336 (45 2)
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AA LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER 2006

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Goodwill

Intangible assets

Deferred tax asset

Property, plant and equipment

Interests in joint ventures and associates
Held-to-matunty investments

Retirement benefit asset

CURRENT ASSETS

Deferred tax asset

Inventones

Trade and other recevables

Non-current assets held for sale

Financial assets — denvative financial instrument
Financial assets — short term deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial habilities

Trade and other payables
Deferred income

Current tax habiity
Current provisions

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial labilities
Non-current provisions
Retirement benefit hability

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Called up share capital

Share premmum

Hedging and translation reserve
Retained eamings

EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS' DEFICIT

on its bghd

SIR TREVCR CHINB
DIRECTOR

Notes

12
14
15
16

26

21
22

25

The notes on pages 17 to 52 form part of these financial statements

15

2006
£m

1,734.5
26.8
49.4
80.1

25
16
689

1,963 8

3086
80
195 4
79
154
97 2

354 5

2,318 3

(124.6)
(221 6)
(261 3)
(15 2)
{20 0)

6427
(1,763 6)
(62 0)
(48 6)
(1,874 2)
—_ (25169)

198 6

2005
£m

1,694 9
87
110 3
799
32
13

~ 18983 _

79
197 1
11
146
1819
402 6

23009~

(35 5)
(216 1)
(267 7)
(191)
(58 8)

(597 2)

(1,808 8)
(79 8)
(147 5)

2,035¢
26331
(332 2)

02

08

(80)
(352
!3322!




AA LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITES

Cash generated from continuing cperations

Cash outflow from exceptional items

Cash outflow from discontinued operations

Interest received

Taxation paid

Receipts from surrender of tax losses from joint ventures

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of subsidianes

Investment in associates

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

Proceeds from the sale of joint venture and investments

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net proceeds from 1ssue of ordinary share capital
Purchase of own shares and borrowings

Net proceeds from 1ssue of new borrowings
Repayment of borrowings

Interest paid on borrowings

Issue costs of borrowings

Bank charges

Finance lease payments

Net change in financial assets — short term deposits

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents net of overdraft at 1 January

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS NET OF OVERDRAFT

AT 31 DECEMBER

16

Notes

30
30

32

y

31

(454)
(03)
(7 2)

(65)

527

6220
(656 1)
(124 7)
(27}
(22)
(14 3)
(08)

(185.8)
(87.1)

1808

937

2005
£m

2141
(134 9)
(16 5)

19

(11)
60
795

(80)

(16)
67

(50)

245

166
04
{01)
(89 6)
(94 7)
(30 3)
(15)

{14 8)
(58}

(236 4)
(140 3)

211

180 8



AA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

General information

AA Limited 1s a imited hability company tncorporated in England and Wales and domiciled in the UK The address of
the registered office 1s Fanum House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hampshire, RG21 4EA The Company I1s the
ultimate parent undertaking of the Group

These financial statements are presented 1n pounds sterling which 1s the cumrency of the pnmary economic
environment in which the Group operates

The financial statements were authonsed for 1ssue by the directors on |  } March 2007

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements of AA Limited have been prepared for the first time 1n accordance with
Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union, Intemational Financial
Reporting Interpretation Council {(IFRIC) interpretations and those parts of the Companies Act 1985 applicable to
companies reporting under IFRS The disclosures required by IFRS 1 concerning the transition from UK GAAP to
IFRS are given in note 38

The consohidated financial statements have been prepared under the histonc cost convention as modified by the
classification of denvatives at farr value

The pnncipal accounting policies are set out below

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by
the Company (its subsidiaries) Control 1s achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of entites in which it has invested in order to obtain economic benefit from its actvities

Business combinations have been accounted for by applying the purchase method On acquisition, the assets,
ilabihties and contingent liabilities assumed in a busingss combination are measured at their fair values at the date of
acquisition Any excess of the consideration paid over the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired 1s
recognised as goodwill

The results of subsidizanes acquired or disposed of dunng the year are included 1n the consolidated income statement
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropnate Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidianes to bnng the accounting policies nto line with those
used by the Group  All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation

Interests in joint ventures and associates

A joint venture 1s an undertaking in which the Group has a long-term interest and shares control with one or more co-
venturers through a contractual agreement

An associate 1s an entity over which the Group 15 In a position to exercise significant influence, but not control or joint
control, through participating in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee

The results, assets and liabilities of joint ventures and associates are incorporated in these financial statements using
the equity method of accounting except when classified as held for sale (see below) Investments in joint ventures
and associates are camed in the Group balance sheet at cost as adjusted by post-acquisition changes in the Group’s
share of the net assets less any impaiment in the value of indmidual investments Losses of the joint venture or
associate in excess of the Group's interest in those joint ventures and associates are not recognised unless the
Group Is contractually obliged to make good those losses, in which case the Group's share of any net habilities of
joint ventures and associates 1s shown within provisions

The Group's investment in joint ventures and associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any
accumulated impairment losses
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AALIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of each consolidated undertaking are recorded at rates
of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions Monetary assets and habilities denominated tn foreign
currencies are translated into the respective functional currency at rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date
Gains and losses ansing on the translabion of assets and liabikties are taken to the income statement

The results of overseas operations are transiated into sterling at average rates of exchange for the penod Exchange
differences ansing on the retranslation of the opening net assets of overseas operations are iransferred to the
Group's cumulative translation reserve in eguity

Goodwill

Goodwill ansing on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisiion over the Group's interest in the fair
value of the :dentified assets and liabiliies of a subsidiary at the date of acquisibon Goodwill 1s recognised as an
asset and reviewed for impairment annually Any impairment 1s recognised immediately in the income statement and
1s not subsequently reversed

On disposal of a subsichary, the attnbutable amount of goodwill 1s included in the determination of the profit or loss on
disposal which 1s taken to the income statement

Goodwill ansing on acquisitions before the date of transttion to IFRS has been retained at the previous UK GAAP
amounts subject to being tested for impairment at that date

Intangible assets

Intangible assets other than goodwill which are acquired separately are stated at cost The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination 1s their fair value as at the date of acquisition

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carned at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated

impairment losses Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there 1s an indication that the intangible asset may be impatrred

Amortisation 1s charged on the following bases

Brand 5% - 10%
Customer relationships 10% - 20%
Software 20% - 33 33%

Property, plant and equipment

Land and builldings held for use in the production of goods and services or for administrative purposes are stated In
the balance sheet at cost or fair value at acquisition less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses No capitalised interest s included in the cost of items of property, plant and equipment

Vehicles, fixtures and equipment are stated at far value at acquisition less accumulated depreciation and any
recognised iImpairment loss

Depreciation 1s charged so as to wnte off the cost or valuation of assets, other than land, over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight ine method on the following bases

Freehold properties 2%

Long leasehold properties 2%

Short leasehold properties Over lease term
Vehicles 14% - 33 33%
Fixtures and equipment 5% - 33 33%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated on a straight ine basis over the lease tem

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and farr value less costs
to selt Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use This condition is regarded as met only when the sale 1s highly
probable and the asset 1s available for immediate sale in its present conditon The sale should be expected to qualfy
for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification
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AA LIMITED

|
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) ‘
2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) |

|

Inventories

Inventones are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost compnises design costs, raw matenals and
direct labour Net realisable value I1s the estmated selling pnce less applicable selling expenses !

Trade receivables

Trade recevables are recognised imtially at fair value less provision for impairment A provision for mpairment of
trade receivables 1s established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the onginal terms of the receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash balances and call deposits with an onginal matunty of three months or |
less Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash management are

included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement

Trade payables

Trade payables are not interest beanng and are recognised at fair value

Insurance contracts — payables and receivables

Payables and receivables are recognised when they fall due These include amounts due to and from insurance
contract holders to which inward reinsurance contracts have been 1ssued by the Group

At each balance sheet date, llabiity adequacy tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of the insurance contract
habiiies In performing these tests, current best estimates of future contractual cash flows and claims handling and
administration expenses are used Any deficiency 18 immediately charged to the income statement by increasing
clams accruals

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial habilities are recogmsed on the Group's balance sheet when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument  They are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into

Debt instruments

Debt 1s imihally recognised n the balance sheet at fair value less transaction costs incurred derectly in connection with
the 1ssue of the instrument Finance costs in respect of the instruments, including discounts on issue, are capitalised
at inception and charged to the iIncome statement over the term of the instrument using the effective interest method
Equity instruments

An equity instrument i1s any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all its
habihbes Equity instruments are recognised at proceeds received less direct 1Issue costs

Dernvative financial instruments

The Group’s activities expose it to the financial nsk of changes in interest rates The Group uses interest rate swap
contracts to hedge these exposures In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the Group 1s required to document
from inception the relationship between the item being hedged and the hedging instrument  The Group 1S also
required to document and demonstrate an assessment of the relationship between the hedged item and the hedging
instrument, which shows that the hedge will be highly effective on an ongoing basis  This effectiveness testing 1s
performed at each penaod end to ensure that the hedge remains highly effective

Denvative financial instruments are recorded in the balance sheet at fair value The fair value of denvabwve financial

instruments 1s determined by reference to market values for simitar financial instruments  Changes tn the fair value of |
denvative financial instruments that are designated and highly effective as hedges of future cashflows are recognised |
directly in equity Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled in the income statement in the penod when the !
hedged item affects profit or loss The gain or loss relating to the effective portion of interest rate swaps hedging

vanable rate borrowings 1s recognised In the income statement within finance costs When a hedging instrument

expires or 1s sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the cntena for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss

existing in equity at that ime remains in equity and 1s recogrised when the forecast transaction i1s ultmately

recognised in the income statement
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AA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substanbally all of the nsks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee  All other leases are classified as operating leases Assets held under finance
leases are recognised as assets of the Group at the:r fair value or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments, each determined at the inception of the lease The corresponding hiability to the lessor 1s included on the
balance sheet as a financial labiity Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and the lease
obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the hability Finance charges are
charged directly to the income statement

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the iIncome statement on a straight-ine basis over the term of
the relevant lease Benefits received and recervable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are spread on a
straight ine basis over the lease term

Provisions

A provision is required when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it
Is probable that settlement will be required of an amount that can be reliably estimated

Provisions for restructuning costs are recognised when the Group has a detailed formal plan for the restructunng that
has been communicated to affected partes Provisions are discounted where the impact 1s matenal

In relation to unoccupied properties, where a decision has been made prior to the year end to permanently vacate
the property, provision s made for future rent and similar costs net of any rental iIncome expected to be received up
to the estmated date of final disposal Provision 1s made on a discounted basis

Retirement benefit obligation

The cost of providing benefits under defined benefit retirement schemes 1s determined using the Projected Unit Credit
Method discounted using the interest rate of a corporate high quality bond denominated in the currency in which the
benefits will be paid and that they have terms to matunty approximately to the terms of the related pension fiability
Valuations are updated by an actuary at each balance sheet date Actuanal gains and losses are recognised in full in
the penod in which they occur in the statement of recognised income and expense

Past service cost 1s recogmsed immediately in the income statement to the extent that benefits are already vested, or
Is otherwise amorbised on a straight-line basis over the average penod until vesting occurs  Curtallment and
settlement gains and losses are recognised immediately in the income statement  Interest costs ansing due to the
Increase In the present value of the defined benefit obligation are recognised in finance costs in the Income
statement

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit
hability as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost, and as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets

Treasury shares

Where the Company or its subsidianes purchase or fund the purchase of the Company's share capital, the
consideration paid 1s shown as a deduction from total shareholders’ equity

Revenue recognition

Revenue 1s measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable in respect of goods and services provided net
of discounts, value added tax and other sales related taxes

Roadside membership subscnptions and premiums receivable on other insurance products are shown gross of any
commission due to intermedianes and are exclusive of insurance premium tax  Premiums are recognised over the
penod in which the Group 1s hable for nsk cover The proportion of the premiums wntten relating to the penod of the
policy that has not expired at the balance sheet date 1s shown within deferred income

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title has passed

Revenue 1s recogmsed for commssion recevable on products serviced by third party companies at the point that the
Group has completed its contractual obligations and, therefore, obtained the nght to the commusston

Interest revenue in respect of trade recevables 1s accrued on a time basis, by reference to the pnncipal outstanding
and at the effective rate of interest applicable, which 1s the rate that discounts future estimated cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to the asset's net carrying amount  All other interest income 1s presented
under the heading ‘Finance income’
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AA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Insurance contracts

Insurance contracts are defined as those containing significant insurance nsk  Significant insurance risk anses if an
insured event could cause an tnsurer to pay benefits or incur costs at the inception of the contract Such contracts
remain designated as insurance contracts until all nghts and obligations are extinguished or expire

Insurance contracts continue to be measured and accounted for under existing accounting practices at the date of
transition to IFRS  Accounting for Roadside recovery services 1s descnbed in the *Revenue recognition’ accounting
policy The majonty of the Group’s insurance contracts are outside the scope of the ABI SORP

Insurance contracts — operating expenses

Commussions and other acquisition costs that vary with, and are related to, secunng new and renewing existing
insurance contracts are expensed to the Income statement at the point they are incurred

Claims incurred compnse claims and related expenses paid in the year and changes in the accruals for outstanding
ciaims, including accruals for claims incurred but not reported and any other adjustments to claims from previous
years Claims incurred include the cost of providing breakdown assistance which 1s expensed as incurred

Exceptional items

Exceptional items are events or transactions that fall within the actvites of the Group and which by virtue of their size
or incidence have been disclosed In order to improve a reader's understanding of the financial statements

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised in the income statement in the penod in which they are incurred

Taxation
The taxation expense in the income statement comprises the sum of current and deferred tax

Current tax 1s based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income
statement because 1t excludes items of income and expense that are taxable or deductble in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible The Group's hability for current tax 1s computed using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the camying amount of assets
and labilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used i the computation of taxable profit,
and 1s accounted for using the balance sheet habtity method Deferred tax liabilihes are generally recogrused for all
taxabte temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recogmsed to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable
profits will be avallable against which deductible temporary differences can be uthsed Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference anses from goodwall or from the ibial recognition of other assets and
habilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax habilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences ansing on investments in subsidianes and
associates and interests in jont ventures, except where the group Is able to contro! the reversal of the temporary
difference and 1t 1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it i1s
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax 1s calculated at the tax rates {hat are expected to apply n the period when the liability 1s settled or the
asset realised Deferred tax i1s charged or credited to the income statement, except when it relates to items charged
or credrited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax 1s also dealt with in equity

Segmental analysis

The Group reports its operations for segmental purposes under the headings Roadside services, Insurance services,
Personal Finance and Other businesses These are the segments that are reported for management purposes
Segments are based on business operations because this 1s where Group nsk and retumn 1s focussed The Group's
exposure to nsk denved from geographical considerations 1s imited as its operations are focussed pnmanly in the
UK
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AA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Segmental analysis (continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilites include items directly attnbutable to a segment as well as those that can be
allocated on a reasonable basis  Finance income ansing from amounts held for regulatory purposes by the Group's
insurance subsidiary undertakings is allocated to segments

Cnitical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are evaluated continually and are based on histoncal expenence and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are beheved to be reasonable under the arcumstances The Group
makes estimates and assumptions about the future The resulting accounting estmates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results The pnncipal estimates and assumptions that have a nsk of causing an adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and habiities within the next financial penod are discussed below

Income taxes

The Group 15 subject to Income taxes in the UK and the Republic of Ireland At each financial penod end, judgement
I required In determining the prowvision for iIncome taxes The Group recognises liablities for anticipated tax 1ssues
based on the best estimates at the balance sheet date Where the final tax outcome of these matters 1s different
from the amounts that were initizlly recorded, such differences will mpact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the penod in which such determination 1s made

Vacant property provisions

The Group makes a provision aganst the future lease costs of vacant properties for the remaining peniod of the
lease, net of sub-letting Income The prowvision 15 calculated on a pre-tax discounted basis

Retirement benefit obligation

The Group’s retirement benefit obligation, which 1s assessed each penod by actuanes i1s based on key assumptions
including return on plan assets, discount rates, inflation, future salary and pension costs These assumptions may be
different to the actual outcome

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill 1s impaired at least on an annual basis  This requires an estimation of the
value in use of the cash generating unit to which goodwill 1s allocated Estimating the value in use requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash generating unit and apply an appropnate
pre-tax discount rate

Insurance contracts — claims costs

The estimation of the ultmate hability from claims made under insurance contracts 1s not considered to be one of the
Group's most cntical accounting estimates  This 1s because the prncipal insurance clams costs for the group relate
to the prowision of Roadside recovery services There is a short penod of time between the receipt of aclam, 1e a

breakdown, and the settling of that claam Consequently there are no significant provisions for unsettled claims costs

Accounting standards not yet effective

The following standards and interpretations are in 1ssue but have not been applied in these financial statements as they
are not yet effective

IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’

IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments Disclosures’ and the related amendment to IAS 1 on capital disclosures
IFRIC 12 “Service concession agreements’

IFRIC 11 ‘IFRS 2 - Group and treasury share transactions’

IFRIC 10 ‘Intenm financial reporting and impairment’

IFRIC 9 ‘Re-assessment of embedded denvatives’

IFRIC 8 'Scope of IFRS 2

IFRIC 7 ‘Applying the restatement approach under IAS 29 financial reporting in hypennflationary economies’

The directors anbicipate the adoption of these standards and interpretations in future penods will have no matenal
impact on the financial statements of the Group except for additional disclosures to capital and financial instruments
when the relevant standards come into effect for penods commencing on or after 2 January 2006 No standards and
nterpretabons that are insssue, but not yet efiective, have been adopted early
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
3 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS BY CLASS OF BUSINESS

In the directors’ opinion, the Group’s activities were managed in one geographical segment in the penod, pnmanly the
UK Segment results, assets and habiibes include items directly attnbutable to a segment as well as those that can
be allocated on a reasonable basis Unallocated inter-segment sales are not matenal Segmental analysis of the

Group’s activities by class of business 1s given below

Primary segment operating result

Year ended 31 December 2006 Roadside Insurance Personal Other Total
services services Finance Businesses
£m £m £m £m £m

Segment revenue
Group revenue 542 7 176 9 - 74 6 794 2
Segment result
Profit before amorbisation of intangible

assets, exceptional tems, finance costs

and taxation 1737 60 9 49 121 2516
Amortisation of intangible assets (13) {18) - {02) (3 3)
Exceptional items (11 8) {13 1) - {0 4) (25 3)
Profit before finance costs and taxaton 160 6 460 49 115 2230
Segment finance income 09 34 - 05 48
Segment result 1615 49 4 49 120 227 8
Group net finance costs (206 5)
Taxation credit 119
Profit from discontinued operations® 28
Profit for the year 360
Year ended 31 December 2005 Roadside Insurance Personal Other Total

services services Finance Businesses
£m £€m £m £m £m

Segment revenue
Group revenue excluding terminated

contract’ 525 1 1523 - 66 7 744 1
Terminated contract - 110 - - 110
Group revenue 525 1 163 3 - 667 755 1
Segment result
Profit before amortisation of intangible

assets, exceptional items, finance costs

and taxation 1387 381 115 70 1953
Amortisation of intangible assets {23) (0 9) - {0 1) (33)
Exceptional items (88 1) (30 8) - {(22) {121 1)
Profit before finance costs and taxation 48 3 64 115 47 709
Segment finance income 09 77 - 03 89
Segment result 49 2 141 115 50 798
Group net finance costs (218 1)
Taxation credit 679
Profit from discontinued operations® 11
Loss for the year (59 3)

Further details on each segment are contained in the Chief Executive’s Review of the Business on pages 2 10 6

The Group terminated its contract to reinsure a 50% quota share of the Churchill Motor book on 4 May 2004 The

Impact on operating profit was broadly neutral
3Jou'lt ventures all relate to the Personal Finance segment
Discontinued operations all relate to Other Businesses
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
3 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS BY CLASS OF BUSINESS (continued)

Segment assets and habilities

As at 31 December 2006 Roadside Insurance Personal Other Total
services services Finance Businesses
£m £m £m £m £m
Assets
Segment assets 1,4259 687 8 03 100 5 22145
Investments in joint ventures and
associates 13 - 12 - 25
1,427 2 687 8 15 100 5 22170
Unallocated corporate assets
Financial asset — denvative
financial iInstrument 79
Cash and financial assets avatable
for group purposes 134
Deferred tax asset 800
Consolidated total assets 2,318 3
Liabihities
Segment habibties {373 8) (173 6) {11) {1020} (650 5)
Unallocated corporate liabnlities
Overdraft (35)
Denvative financial instrument {02)
Borrowings (1,862 7)
Consoldated total habiities (2,516 9)
Capital additions
- Property plant and equipment 26 3 03 - 25 291
- Intangible assets 21 41 - 03 65
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 187 17 - 07 211
As at 31 December 2005 Roadside Insurance Persanal Other Total
services services Finance Businesses
£m £m £m £m £m
Assets
Segment assets 14,3957 596 0 - 1033 2,0950
Investments in joint ventures and
associates 10 - 22 - 32
1,396 7 596 0 22 103 3 2,0982
Unallocated corporate assets
Cash and financial assets available
for group purposes 924
Deferred tax asset __1103
Consolidated total assets 2,3009
Liabihities
Segment habilities (471 8) (208 9) {3 6) {123 2) (807 5)
Unallocated corporate liabilities
Qverdraft n
Borrowings (1,812 7}
Denvative financial instrument (11 8)
Consolidated total labiities (2,633 1)
Capital additions
- Property plant and equipment 01 15 - - 16
- Intangible assets 15 19 - 16 50
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 207 11 - 07 225
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continued)
4 REVENUE

Analysis by category of revenue — continuing operations

2006 2005
£m £m
Insurance contracts excluding terminated contract 5035 483 4
Insurance contracts — terminated contract* - 110
lnsurance contracts 5035 494 4
Revenue from services 226 4 195 4
Sales of goods 350 363
Interest 293 290
794 2 7551
Revenue from insurance contracts can be allocated to segments as follows £m £m
Roadside Services 472 4 455 2
Insurance Services 156 252
Other Businesses 155 140
5035 494 4
* The Group terminated its contract to reinsure a 50% quota share of the Churchill Motor book on 4 May 2004
5 OPERATING EXPENSES
Operating expenses are stated after charging
2006 2005
£m £m
Employment costs (see note 6) 2350 2480
Depreciation of owned property, plant and equipment (see note 15) 107 127
Depreciation of leased property, plant and equipment (see note 15) 104 98
Operating lease rentals
- Vehicles 77 57
- Land and buildings 36 52
Other operating expenses 2620 2704
Raw matenals and consumables 17 2 195
Auditors’ remuneration 11 11
Operating costs before amortisation of intangible assets and exceptional items 547 7 5724
Amortisation of intangible assets (see note 13) 3.3 33
Exceptional items (see note 7) 253 1211
Total operating costs 576 3 696 8
Services provided by the Group’s auditcr and network firms are as follows
2006 2005
£m £m
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Company's annual financial
statements 02 02
Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates for other services
The audit of the Company's subsidianies pursuant to legislation 04 04
All other services 05 05
11 11
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

6 EMPLOYEES
The average number of persons employed by the Group, including executive directors, dunng the penod was as
follows
2006 2005
number number
Roadside Services 4,896 5,490
Insurance Services 1,541 1,691
Other Businesses 748 761
7,185 7,942
Staff costs dunng the pened amounted to 20086 2005
£m £m
Wages and salaries 192 3 2035
Social secunty costs 17.9 182
Retirement benefit costs 248 263
2350 2480
The Company has no employees (2005 nil)
7 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
2006 2005
£m £m
Restructuring costs 253 1211

Restructunng costs tn both years relate pnmanly to redundancy costs (including retirement benefit adjustments — see

note 26}, professional fees and the re-orgamising of group operations

8 FINANCE INCOME
2006 2005
£m £m
Bank interest recevable 02 119
Other finance income in respect of retirement benefit obligations
(see note 26) 114 75
206 194
9 FINANCE COSTS
2008 2005
£m £m
Interest on bank leans and overdraft 1508 1225
Unwinding of discount on subordinated preference certificates 383 94 5
Amortisation of 1ssue costs of bank loans 271 76
Bank charges 3.9 15
Unwinding of discount rate on prowvisions 06 -
Finance lease interest 10 18
Other interest payable 06 07
2223 2286
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

10 TAXATION

The taxation credit 1s made up as follows
Current tax

- Current year

- Adjustment in respect of pnor years

Deferred tax
- Retirement benefits
- Fixed assets
- Taxlosses
- QOther short term tming differences

Tax on discontinued operations (see note 11)
Total tax credit for the year

Reconciliation of effective tax charge for continuing operations

Profit/{loss) before tax

Tax on profit/{loss) at standard UK Corporation tax rate of 30%

Effects of

Income on Incorporated joint ventures

Sale of fixed assets and businesses

Lower rate of overseas tax

Losses sold at below 30%

Other

Adjustments in respect of pnor years

Current year adjustment on unrecognised deferred tax
Group tax credit for the year

M DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

2006 2005
£m £m
09 03

(0 4) 34)
05 (31)
142 71
(7 8) (33)
(3.0) (66 9)
(14 6) (62)
(11.2) (62 3)
{107) (72 4)
(12) 45
{119) (67 9)

2006 2005
£m £m

21.3 (138 3)
64 (4185)

(08) @7

(1.7) (29)

0 8) (05)
. 02
09 25

(4 8) -

(111) (220)
(11 9) (67 9)

The post-tax results of discontinued operations that have been included in the consolidated income statement were

as follows

Revenue

Operating expenses

Share of profit of joint ventures

Profit from sale of investment in joint ventures
Profit/(loss) from the termination of operations
Profit before finance costs and taxation
Unwinding of discount on provisions

Profit before tax

Aftributable tax {charge)/credit

Profit after tax
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20086 2005
£m £m
- 10
- (07)
- 02
- 209
6.8 (119)
68 95

(2 8) {2 9)
490 66
(12} 45
28 111




AA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
11 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

The profit from the termination of operations i1s analysed below

2006 2005

£m £m
Closure of Service Centres 62 (14 5)
Other closure costs 06 23
Profit on disposat of business - 03
68 (11 9)

Service Centre closure costs arose from the transfer of a number of sites to a third party and the closure of the
remaining sites and include rent, professional fees and other property costs Prowision for property costs has been
made on a pre-tax discounted basis The profits in 2006 relate to the release of pnor year provisions due to faster
than planned transfer of empty properties

Other closure costs relate to the termination of tyre-fitting services and vehicle inspections and pnncipally compnse
redundancy costs The profits in 2006 and 2005 relate to the release of the 2004 provision that was not utihsed

Discontinued operations are Service Centres, tyre-fiting services, vehicle inspections and external trainung faciiihes
The discontinued joint venture 1s Motorfile Limited

Cash flows 1n respect of discontinued operations ¢an be found in note 30

12 GOODWILL

£m
Cost
At 1 January 2005 and 2006 1,694 9
Acquisition (see note 32) 415
Adjustment to acquistions in prior years {(19)
At 31 December 2006 1,734 5
Aggregate impairment losses
At 31 December 2005 and 2006 -
Net book value
At 31 December 2006 1,734 5
At 31 December 2005 1,694 9

The adjustment to acquisitions in the pror years relates to an adjustment to the consideration relating to the purchase
of AA Corporation Limited tin 2004

At the year end, goodwili of £1,277 8m has been allocated to Roadside Services and goodwill of £392 4m has been
allocated to Insurance Services

Impairment test for goodwill

The Group tests goodwill for impairment on an annual basis, or more frequently If there are indications that goodwall
might be impaired

The recoverable amounts of the cash generating units (CGUs) are determined from value-in-use calculations  The
key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected
changes to selling prices and direct costs dunng the panod for which the Group has detalled plans Discount rates
are estimated using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time vatue of money and the nsks
specific to the CGU being measured The rate used to discount forecast cash flows for Roadside Services s 10%,
and for Insurance Services and Personal Finance it1s 11% Changes in the selling pnces and direct costs are based
on past pracbices and expectations of future changes in the market The Group prepares cash flow forecasts denved
from the most recent financial budgets approved by management for the next three years and extrapolates cash
flows after that penod based on the histonc UK long-run growth rate

Following detalled review, no impairment losses have been recognised in the year

28




AA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Brand Customer Software Total

relationships
£m £m £m £m

Cost
At 1 January 2005 - - 82 82
Additions - 06 44 50
At 31 December 2005 - 086 126 132
Additiocns - 02 63 65
Disposals - - {(10) (10)
Acquisihons (see note 32) 03 14 6 - 14 9
At 31 December 2006 03 15.4 17.9 3386
Amortisation
At 1 January 2005 - - 12 12
Charge for the year - - 33 33
At 31 December 2005 - - 45 45
Charge for the year - 11 22 33
Disposals - - {10} (1 0)
At 31 December 2006 - 11 57 68
Net book value
At 31 December 2006 03 14 3 12.2 26.8
At 31 December 2005 - 06 81 87

14 DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax (habilities) and assets recognised by the Group and the movements thereon

Pension Losses Fixed Other Total
assets

£m £m £m £m £m

At 1 January 2005 431 - - - 431

Income statement credit {71 669 33 62 693
Taken to equity {586) - - 35 (21)

At 31 December 2005 304 669 33 97 1103

Income statement credit {14 2) 30 78 14 6 112
Taken to equity (36 7) - - {5 8) (41 5)

At 31 December 2006 (19 5) 69 9 11.1 185 800

At the balance sheet date, the Group had an unrecognised deferred tax asset of £11 5m (2005 £22 8m) The income
statement credit of £3 Om relating to losses has been reduced by £8 3m due to the disclaimung of capital allowances

Current deferred tax asset
Non-current deferred tax asset

29

2008 2005
£m £m
3086 -
494 1103
800 1103
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land and Vehicles Fixtures and Total
buldings equipment
£m £m £m £m

Cost
At 1 January 2005 320 490 365 1175
Additions 02 04 10 16
Disposals (28) (35) {0 3) (6 6)
Reclassified as held for sale (11) - - (1)
Exchange movement 01 (0 1) (01) (0 1)
At 31 December 2005 28 4 458 371 1113
Addibons C1 235 556 291
Acquisitions (see note 32) 01 - 14 15
Disposals (2 8} (10 4) 07 (139)
Exchange movement 01 01 01 03
At 31 December 2006 259 590 434 128 3
Depreciation
At 1 January 2005 02 57 34 93
Charge for year 09 151 65 225
Disposals o1n {(03) - {0 4)
At 31 December 2005 10 205 99 314
Charge for year 08 115 88 211
Disposals (02) (3 8) {0 3} (4 3)
At 31 December 2006 16 282 184 48 2
Net book value
At 31 December 2006 243 308 250 80 1
At 31 December 2005 274 253 27 2 799

As at 31 December 2005 and 31 December 2006, a fixed and floating charge was in place over all property, plant and
egquipment in relation to the Group's Senior Facility (see note 23)

Vehicles include the following assets held under finance leases

2006 2005

£m £m

Cost 556 426
Accumulated depreciation (26 2) (190)
Net book value 29 4 236
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
16 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES

The Group’s share of the assets and liabilibes compnsing the Group's interests in joint ventures are shown below

2006 2005

£m £m

Non-current assets 618 3 6252

Current assets 3400 3167
Current iabilites {577 0) {466 8)
Non-current habilities {380 1) {475 2)
12 ©1

Transferred to provisions - 23

Investment in associates 13 10

25 32

At 31 December 2005, the share of net labilittes of £2 3m in the joint venture, Automobile Association Personal
Finance Limited, was shown within provisions (see note 25}

The Group's interests in the iIncome and expenses of joint ventures are shown below

2006 2005

£m £m

income 75 738
Expenses {72 9) (58 5)
Profit before tax 46 14 3
Tax 05 {15)
51 12 8

The share of interest in joint ventures' Income and expenses can be analysed as follows

2006 2005
£m £m
Continuing operations 51 126
Discontinued operations - 02
51 128

Joint ventures within continuing operations all relate to Personal Finance activities

17 INVENTORIES

2006 2005
£m £m
Woark in progress 0.8 16
Firushed goods 7.2 63
80 79

There 1s no matenal difference between book value and fair value At the balance sheet date, the provision for
obsolete and slow mowving stock was £1 3m (2005 £1 3m)

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2006 2005

£m £m

Trade receivables 1820 1657
Other receivables 30 111
Prepayments and accrued income 92 17 3
Amounts due from related partes (see note 36) 1.2 30
195.4 197 1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continued)
19 NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

2006 2005
£m £m
Property held for sale - 11

20 FINANCIAL ASSETS - SHORT TERM DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Financial assets — short term deposits and cash and cash equivalents included £99 2m (2005 £104 1m) which were
held by the Group's insurance subsidiary undertakings These sums are not readily available to be used for other
purposes within the Group

21 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
2006 2005
£m £m
Current
Bank overdraft 35 11
Secured bank loans (see note 23) 1114 133
Denvative financial instruments 02 18
Finance lease habilities 95 93
124 6 355
Non-current
Secured bank loans (see note 23} 1,639.5 1,201 1
Debenture loans Subordinated preference certificates (see
note 23) 118 598 3
Finance lease habilities 123 92
1,763 6 1,808 6
Total financial habihities 1,888.2 1,844 1
22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
2006 2005
£m £m
Trade payables 87.2 700
Other payables 153 180
Accruals 119.1 128 1
221.6 2161
23 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
2006 2005
£m £m
Maturity of debt
In less than one year, or on demand 1114 133
In one to two years 56 8 328
In two to three years 737 568
In three to four years 86 6 737
In four to five years 953 862
In more than five years 1,438 9 1,549 9
1,862 7 18127

Borrowings are stated net of unamortised 1ssue costs of £34 8m (2005 £54 6m)
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NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
23 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)

Details of the Group’s bank borrowings, excluding subordinated preference certificates and unamortised issue costs

are outhined below

Balance Balance
at 31 at 31 Interest Capital interest Repayment date
December December payable (a)
2006 2005
£m £m
Secuntisation 970 - Base + 0 5% - 14 March 2009
Senior facility
Revolving credit 50 - LIBOR +2 25% - 9 January 2007
Tranche A 3470 3920 LIBOR + 2 25% - (b)
Tranche B 4009 2116 | LIBOR + 2 50% (c) - 30 June 2012 and 31
December 2012
Tranche C 3915 2067 | LIBOR + 300% (c) - 31 December 2013
Tranche D 1300 - LIBOR + 4 50% - 30 June 2014
Mezzanine facility
Tranche A 1433 1759 | LIBOR + 3 50% (d) 4 75% (d) 31 December 2014
Tranche B 169 1 1697 LIBOR + 4 00% 35% 31 December 2014
Junior Mezzanine 983 893 - LIBOR + 10 00% 31 January 2015
facility

{(a) Capttal interest 1s compounded annually

{b) Repayments are made in increasing instalments every six months from 30 September 2007 to 31 March 2011,
with the final instalment due on 31 December 2011

{c) Untl 15 March 2006, interest was payable on the Senior facility as follows Tranche B at LIBOR +2 75% and
Tranche C at LIBOR +3 25%

{(d) Unt! 15 March 2006, the Mezzanine facility Tranche A had interest payable of LIBOR +4 00% and capital
interest of 6 5%

A further £95 Om s avallable at 31 December 2006 under the revolving credit facility, for which a commitment fee of
0 75% per annum Is payable £5 8m of this facility has been utiised to provide letters of credit (2005 £2 7m)

The secuntisation facility 1s secured on certain trade recevables  All of the other bank loans are secured by a fixed and
fioating charge over UK properties and shares in subsidiary undertakings and a floating charge over all other assets of
the Company and certain pnncipal subsidiary companies, except over financial assets — short term deposits and cash
and cash equivalents both held for insurance regulatory purposes

Subordinated preference certificates

The subordinated preference certificates are redeemable on 30 September 2015 The certificates are included in the
balance sheet at the value of their proceeds plus amortised discount to the balance sheet date The discount 1s
charged to finance costs in the income statement over the term of the instrument to give an effective rate of 16 5%,
compounded quarterly The certificates are unsecured

Priority of repayment

The Senior facility has pnionty of repayment, followed by the Mezzanine facility and then the Junior Mezzanine facility

The nghts of the holders of the subordinated preference certificates are subordinated to the nghts of all credstors of the
Group, including the borrowings referred to above
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
24 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial Risk Management Objectives

The Group 15 exposed to a varety of financial nsks The Group's overall nsk management programme Is discussed
further in the Finance Director's Review on pages 7 to 9

Hedging Activities

To mitigate its exposure to fluctuations in interest payments and increased cash outflows, the Group has entered into
swap arrangements for part of its secured bank loans Under this arrangement, contracts with nominal values of
£534 5m have fixed interest payments of 5 49% (reducing to £522 5m by 31 Decermnber 2007) and £500 Om have
fixed interest payments at 4 78% (increasing to £750 Om by 31 December 2008) Both swaps are designated as an
effective cashflow hedge and the farr value has been transferred to the hedging reserve

Fair values of financial instruments

There 1s no difference between the book value and the fair value of financal instruments

Maturity and interest rate profiles of financial assets and liabilities

The matunty and mterest rate profiles of financial assets and habilities after taking account of interest rate swaps
were as follows

31 December 2006

Fixed Floating Non- Total
interest
Financial liabnlities bearing
£m £m £m £m
Sterling borrowings
Due within one year 150 1020 35 1205
Due after one year but not
more than two years 623 - - 623
Due after more than two
years but not more than
five years 2698 - - 269.8
Due after more than five
years 8028 6457 - 1,448 5
1,149 9 7477 35 1,901 1
Finance lease obligations
Due within one year 95 - - 95
Between one and five years 123 - - 123
218 - - 218
Financial habihties 1,171 7 747 7 35 1,822 9
Financial assets
Financial assets — short term
deposits - 154 - 154
Cash and cash equivalents - 972 - 97 2
Held-to-matunty investments - 186 - 16
Financial assets - 114 2 - 114 2

Total debt 1ssue costs of £34 Bm are axcluded from the financial liabiiies detarled above

Cash, cash equivalents and financial assets — short term deposits all mature in less than one year and have an
effective interest rate of 4 9%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
24 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Maturity and interest rate profiles of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

31 December 2005

Fixed Floating Non- Total
interest
Financial habilities bearing
£m £m £m £m
Sterling borrowings
Due within one year 106 83 11 200
Due after one year but not
more than two years 385 - - 385
Due after more than two
years but not more than
five years 234 3 - - 2343
Due after more than five
years 1,067 9 5077 - 1,575 6
1,351 3 516 0 11 1,868 4
Finance lease obligations
Due within one year 93 - - 93
Between one and five years 92 - - 92
185 - - 185
Financial habilities 1,369 8 516 0 14 1,886 9
Financial assets
Financial assets — short term
deposiis - 146 - 146
Cash and cash equivalents - 1819 - 1819
Held-to-matunty investments - 13 - 13
Financial assets - 197 8 - 197 8

Total debt 1ssue costs of £54 6 mulion are excluded from the financial habihes detaled above

Cash, cash equivalents and financial assets - short term deposits all mature in less than one year and have an
effective interest rate of 4 4%

Finance lease liabilities

Future finance lease commitments are as follows

2006 2005
£m fm
Capital value of minimum lease payments
Amaounts payable
Within one year 95 93
Between one and five years 123 92
21.8 18 6
Minimum lease payments
Amounts payable
Within one year 104 102
Between one and five years 135 100
239 202
Less future finance charges {21) (17)
Present value of lease obligation 218 185

The effective interest rate on finance leases for the year 1s 6 2% (2005 6 6%)
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25 PROVISIONS
Investment in Restructunng Property Other Total

net habilities of
Joint ventures

£m £m £m £m £m

At 1 January 2006 23 359 975 29 138 6
Unwinding of discount - - 34 - 34
Charge for the year - 19 - - 19
Unutilised provision released - {0 5) (6 8) - (7 3)
Utihsed in the year - (327) (18 1) (2 0) (52 8)
Acquisitions - - 05 - 0S5
Transfer to investments in

joint ventures (23) - - - (23)
At 31 December 2006 - 4.6 765 09 820

Provisions have been analysed between current and non-current as follows

2006 2005

£m fm

Current provisions 200 58 8
Non-current provisions 620 798
820 138 6

Investments
The Group's share of net habiliies in the joint venture relates to Automobile Association Personal Finance Limited
Further information on this joint venture 1s contained in note 16

Restructuring
The restructunng provision relates to redundancy and other related costs followang restructunng within the Group It1s
anticipated that the balance at 31 December 2006 will be utiised in 2007

Property

The property provision relates to future lease costs of vacant properties for the remaining penod of the lease, net of
expected sub-lething Income A significant element of this provision relates to Service Centre sites not transferred to a
third party These sums are expected to be paid out annually over the next 15 years The provision has been calculated
on a pre-tax discounted basis

Other
Other provisions relate to a number of onerous contracts and are expected to be utilised over the next three years
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
26 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION

Substantially all of the Group’s employees at 31 December 2006 were members of either the AA pension scheme or the
AA Ireland pension scheme which are both defined benefit schemes

The AA pension scheme and the AA treland pension scheme are subject to independent valuations at least every three
years, on the basis of which the qualified actuary recommends the rate of employers’ contnbutions  This contribution
rate, together with the specified contnbutions payable by the employees and proceeds from the schemes’ assets, are
expected to be sufficient to fund the benefits payable under the schemes The actuanal valuations were last carned out
on 31 March 2004 and 31 December 2004 respectively and updated for each year end

Durning 2005, the prior service habilires and the associated assets of certain employees were transferred from Centnca
Plc pension funds under the terms agreed on the acquisiton of AA Corporation Limited 1in 2004

Certain employees are also members of a post retirement pnvate medical insurance scheme, which 1s an unfunded
defined benefit scheme This scheme had a tnenmial independent actuanal valuation undertaken at 31 December 2004

The actuanal valuations have been updated by a qualified independent actuary

The major assumptions used for the actuanal valuations were

2006 2005
% %
Discount rate 510 490
Expected rate of retum on plan assets 6.80 6 70
Rate of salary increases 400 385
Rate of inflation 290 265
Medical cost inflation 690 6 65
Reconcihation of net retirement benefit obhgation
2006 2005
£m £m
Present value of defined benefit iabilities
- Funded (1,125 3) {1,129 1}
- Unfunded {pnvate medical insurance scheme) (45 0) {43 6)
(1,170 3) (1,172 7}
Plan assets at fair value 1,190 6 1,025 2
Net retirement benefit obligation 203 (147 5)
Reconciliation of net retirement benefit obligation in the balance sheet
2006 2005
£m £m
Retirement benefit asset 689 -
Rettrernent benefit hability {48 6) (147 5)
Net retirement benefit obligation 203 (147 5)
The major categones of plan assets as a percentage of total plan assets are as follows
20086 2005
% %
Equihes 608 64 4
Bonds 268 278
Property 52 49
Other 72 29
Total 1000 100 0
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26 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION (continued)

Reconciliation of the farr value of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at 1 January
Expected retum on assets

Actuanal gain on assets

Company contnbutions

Employee contnbutions

Benefits paid from fund

Bulk transfer

Fair value of plan assets at 31 December

Reconcihation of present value of defined benefit iability

Present value of defined benefit iabiity at 1 January
Current service cost

Past service cost recognised in year

Curtaiiment gain

Interest cost

Employee contnbutions

Actuanal (gan)loss

Benefits paid

Bulk transfer

Present value of defined benefit hability at 31 December

Components of the retirement benefit expense recognised in the iIncome statement

Analysis of the amount charged to operating expenses
Current service cost

Analysis of amounts charged to exceptional items
Curtailment gain

Past service cost recognised in the year

Analysis of the amount charged/(credited) to finance costs/(income)
Expected return on assets (net of expenses)
Interest cost

Total retirement benefit expense

History of experience gains and {losses)

Difference between the expected and actual return on the plan assets
Amount (Em)
Percentage of plan assets

Experience gains and (losses) on defined benefit habilities

Amount (£m)
Percentage of the present value of defined benefit labilities
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2006 2005
£m £m
1,025 2 8108
68.0 619
64.2 857
612 342
66 77
(34 6) (37 5}
- 62 4
1,190 6 1,0252
2006 2005
£m £m
1,172.7 996 4
24.8 26 3
06 32
{1.0) (10 6)
566 54 4
66 77
(55 4) 704
(34 6) (37 5)
- 62 4
1,170 3 11727
2006 2005
£m £m
248 263
(10} (10 8)
06 32
(0 4) {(74)
24.4 18 9
(68 0) (61 9)
56 6 54 4
(11.4) {7 5)
1390 114
2006 2005
64 2 856
54% 8 4%
2.1 509
02% 4 3%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
26 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION (continued)

The estimated amount of contnbutions expected to be paid to the scheme dunng the current financial year ending 31

December 2007 1s £37 5 million

Medicat cost trend

The effects of a 1% change in the medical cost trend on the defined benefit obligation, the interest cost and the

service cost are as follows

Year ended 31 December 2006 Medical cost Medical cost Medical cost
trend rates of trend rates trend rates
10%pa adopted of10%pa
lower higher
Defined benefit obligation 378 450 522
interest cost 18 21 25
Service cost 01 02 02
Year ended 31 December 2005 Medical cost Medical cost Medical cost
trend rate of trend rate trend rate of
10%pa adopted 1%pa
lower higher
Defined benefit obligation 364 436 506
Interest cost 17 21 24
Service cost 02 02 03
Year ended 31 December 2004 Medical cost Medical cost Medical cost
trend rate of trend rate trend rate of
10%pa adopted 1%pa
lower higher
Defined benefit obligation 327 393 457
Interest cost 16 19 21
Service cost 03 04 05
27 CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL
2006 2005
Authonsed £ £
1,000,000 ‘A’ ordinary shares of £0 10 each 100,000 100,000
1,047,120 ‘B’ ordinary shares of £0 10 each 104,712 104,712
204,712 204,712
Allotted, called up and fully paid
1,000,000 ‘A’ ordinary shares of £0 10 each 100,000 97,913
999,995 ‘B’ ordinary shares of £0 10 each 100,000 99,896
200,000 197,809

During 2006, the Company i1ssued 20,871 'A’ ordinary shares for cash consideration of £20,767 and 1,040 'B’ ordinary
shares for cash consideration of £104

The ‘A’ ordinary shares are entitled to a distnbution of profits in advance of the ‘B’ ortinary shares, the ‘A’ ordinary shares
carry no nght to vote in any respect with regard to general meetings of the Company

The Company has also 1ssued 45,000 warrants to subscnbe in cash for par of £0 10 for ‘B’ ordinary shares on 30
September 2004 Each warrant entitles the holder to subscnbe for such sum of ordinary share capital as represented by
0 0001% of the ‘B’ ordinary shares of the fully diluted share capital The warmrants are exercisable on the occurrence of a
specific future event and lapse if not exercised at that time

In 2005, an employee share trust was established to operate the employee share ownership plan, under which the trust
holds shares on behalf of participating employees  If participating employees leave the Group, they must surrender therr
beneficial interest in those shares which are then treated as Treasury shares as defined in note 2 At 31 December 2006,
the trust held 4,141 (2005 371) ‘B’ ordinary shares with a nominal value of £414 10 (2005 £37 10) which had been
surrendered by former employees These shares represent 0 414% (2005 0 037%) of the fotal issued ‘B’ ordinary shares
of the Group
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28 RESERVES

At 1 January 2005

Farir value movements on cash flow hedges net of deferred tax

Exchange translation differences
Premium on ‘A’ ordinary shares
At 31 December 2005

Fair value movements on cash flow hedges net of deferred tax

At 31 December 2006

Share Translation Hedging
premium reserve reserve
£m £m £m
05 - {12 4)
- - 41
- 03 -
03 - -
08 03 (83)
- - 137
08 03 54

Exchange translation differences anse on consolidation and relate to currency differences on the retranslation of

foreign operations

29 STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Share Hedging Retained Total
capital and trans- earnings
and lation
premium reserve
£m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2005 06 {12 4) {275 6) (287 4}
Loss for the financial year - - (59 3) {59 3)
Actuanal gain on retirement benefit ability net
of deferred tax - - 97 97
Fair value movements on cash flow hedges net
of deferred tax - 41 - 41
Exchange translation differences - 03 - 03
Issue of shares 04 - - 04
At 31 December 2005 10 (8 0) (325 2) {332 2)
Profit for the financial year - - 360 360
Actuanal gain on retirement benefit iabilty net
of deferred tax - - 839 83g
Fair value movemenis on cash flow hedges net
of deferred tax - 137 - 137
At 31 December 2006 10 57 {205 3) (198 €)
30 CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Reconciliation of profit/{loss) to net cash inflow/{outflow) 2006 2006 2006
from operating activities Continuing Exceptional Dis-
before items continued
exceptional operations
items
£m £m £m
Profit/{loss) per income statement 248 3 (25 3) 28
Depreciation charge 211 - -
Amortisation of intangible assets 33 - -
Change in inventones {0 1) - -
Change in receivables 24 - 29
Change In payables {18 9) - -
Change in retirement benefit obligation 38 (40 4}) -
Change In provisions {2 0) (36 6} {16 8)
Dividends from joint ventures 36 - -
Share of profits of joint ventures and associates {(51) - -
Profit on disposal of fixed assets - (12} -
Tax charge on discontinued operations - - 12
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from operating activities 256 4 {103 5) (99)
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30 CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (continued)

Reconcihation of profit/{loss) to net cash inflow/(outflow) 2005 2005 2005
from operating activities Continuing Exceptional Dis-
before items continued
exceptional operations
items
£m £m £m
Profit/(loss) per incorme statement 192 ¢ (121 1) 111
Depreciation charge 225 - -
Amortisation of intangible assets 33 - -
Change in inventones {19) - -
Change in receivables 129 - -
Change in payables {59) - -
Change in retirement benefit obligation {47) (10 6) -
Change in provisions {11 {(09) (20)
Dividends from joint ventures 96 - -
Share of profits of joint ventures and associates (12 6) - (02)
Profit on disposal of fixed assets - {2 3) -
Profit on disposal of investment in joint ventures - {20 9)
Tax credit on discontinued operations - - (45)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 2141 (134 9) {16 5)
31 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and Overdraft Total
cash
equivalents
£m £m £m
At 1 January 2005 321 1 - 3211
Cashflow (139 2) (11} {140 3}
At 31 December 2005 1819 {11) 180 8
Cashflow (84 7) (24) (87 1)
At 31 December 2006 97 2 {3 5) 937

32 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

The Group purchased 100% of the assets and trade of Taytor Pnce and Co, trading as Direct Choice, on 7 July 2006

The acquisition method of accounting was adopted

Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment
Inventones

Receivables

Cash and cash equivalents
Payables

Financial habilibes
Provisions

Net assets acquired
Goodwill {see note 12)
Consideraton

Consideration satisfied by
Cash (including fees)

Pre- acquisition Fair value
book values
£m £m
- 14.9
16 1.5
01 -
132 1.9
43 43
{14 6) {14 6)
(23) (12)
- (05)
23 163
415
57 8
578

Dunng the year ended 31 December 20086, fair values were determuned on a provisional basis

The goodwill recognised on the acquisiion of Taylor Pnce and Co of £41 5m represents the value of the workforce

and synergies, both in increased revenues and reduced costs, expected to anse as a result of the acquisition
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32 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

The intangible assets acquired as part of the acquisiton of Taylor Price and Co 1s analysed as follows

£m

Brand 03
Customer relationships 1486
149

From the date of acquisition to 31 December 2006, the acquired business contnibuted £3 1m to operating profit before
amortsation of intangible assets and exceptional items and £1 6m to profit before tax If the acquisition had been
made at the beginning of the year, the pro forma consolidated group revenue would be £803 3m and pro forma
consolidated group profit before tax would be £23 6m

The outflow of cash and cash equivalents on acquisitions 1s calculated as follows

£m
Cash consideration {including fees) in respect of Taylor Pnce and Co (67 4)
Cash and cash equivalents net of overdrafts acquired in respect of Taylor Pnce and Co 20
Adjustment to consideration in respect of the acquisition of AA Corporation Limited in 2004 100
Cash cutflow on acquisitions for the year ended 31 December 2006 {45 4)

33 INSURANCE CONTRACTS

The Group's principal insurance contracts are contracts for the provision of Roadside recovery services for a fixed
fee, under which insurance risk 1s assumed by the Group

Other contracts wnitten by the Group are

- Legal assistance These contracts mainly anse from the Claims Assistance product sold with third party motor
insurance policies and the Legal Expenses product sold with third party home insurance policies
- Reinsurance These are inward motor reinsurance contracts under which the contract holder 1s another insurer

Insurance contracts as defined above are not comparable with the activities of the segment ‘'Insurance Services’ as
detalled in note 3

Amount, tming and uncertainty of profit and loss and future cashflows

The nsk under any one insurance contract 1s the possibility that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the
amount of the resulting claim The nature of the business written by the Group s generally of one year or less in
duration, however it 1s still subject to some unpredictability The key nisks the Group faces are significant fluctuations
In the frequency, iming and seventy of claims relative to expectations

The nsk and level of service required for Roadside recovery contracts 1s dependent upon the occurrence of uncertain
future events, in particular, the number of breakdowns and the nature of each breakdown Breakdowns are sensitive
to the reliability of cars as well as the impact of weather conditions The Group employs a patrol force which attends
over 90% of all breakdown calls received In the event that a patrol 1s unable to attend a breakdown, the Group has
built up an extensive network of garages with pre-agreed pnces to ensure that all breakdowns are attended on a
timely basis The Group uses histoncal data and statistical technigues to predict levels of claims and therefore
actively manages the size and locaton of its patrol force  The Group continually invests in its patrol force, for
example the introduction of the new Vehicle Recovery System, to improve their efficiency in attending breakdowns
There 1s no concentration of nsk due to the large size of the Group's membership base across the UK and Ireland

For other insurance contracts, the Group only enters into contracts with insurance nsk where it has expenence of the
market Claims must be made within a short ime of the policy expiring, and most ¢laims are settled within one year
This allows the Group to achieve a high degree of certainty about the estimated cost of claims and therefore future
cashflows The Group manages its insurance nsk by constantly monitonng the level of claims for each product and
has the ability to adjust pnces in the future to reflect any change in claims expenence The Group has a claims
handling process which includes the nght to review and reject fraudulent clams  There 1s imited concentration of nsk
due to the large size of the Group’s portfolio
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33 INSURANCE CONTRACTS {continued)

Income and expenses arising directly from insurance contracts

2006 2005

£m £m

Revenue excluding terminated contract 5035 483 4

Terminated contract® - 110

Revenue - premiums eamed 503 § 494 4
Operating expenses

Claims costs 211.8 2525

Other expenses 80.5 842

302.3 3367

* The Group terminated its contract to reinsure a 50% quota share of the Churchill Motor book on 4 May 2004 The
impact on operating profit was broadly neutral

Operating expenses ansing directly from insurance contracts pnmanly relate to breakdown assistance and include
employment costs, vehicle depreciation and other operating expenses

Assets and habilities ansing directly from insurance contracts

2006 2005
£m £m

Assets
Receivables ansing out of direct insurance operations 269 211
Prepayments 18 2 142
45.1 353
2006 2005
Liabilities £m £m
Deferred income ansing from uneamed premiums 250.8 2525
Claims accruals 511 60 4
Other accruals 6.3 52
Payables ansing out of direct nsurance operations 176 171
Provision for onerous insurance contracts 01 07
3259 3359

Claims accruals include payables and accruals relating to breakdown assistance expenses

Reconciliation of movement In insurance liabilities

Deferred income ansing from unearned premiums 2006 2005
£m £m
At 1 January 252 5 2620
Revenue — premiums eamed (503.5) {494 4)
Premiums wntten 5018 4849
At 31 December 250.8 2525
Claims accruals 2006 2005
£m fm
At 1 January 604 59 1
Claims incurred 2118 2525
Claims paid (2211) (251 2}
At 31 December 511 60 4
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34 DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS AND REMUNERATION

The beneficial interests of the directors In the shares of the Company at 31 December 2006 were

‘A’ ordinary ‘B’ ordtnary ‘A’ ordinary ‘B’ ordinary

shares shares shares shares

20086 2006 2005 2005

Sir Trevor Chinp 80,000 5,568 80,000 5,568
Timothy Parker 400,000 27,870 400,000 27,870
Paul Woolf 72,500 3,625 72,500 3,625

In addition, Paul Woolf had a beneficial interest in 15 86 ‘B’ ordinary shares and suberdinated preference certificates
acquired at a cost of £9,998 on 25 February 2005, both of which are held through the employee share trust Dunng
2006 subordinated preference certificates with a cost of £8,421 were redeemed resulting in a gain of £2,301

On § September 2005, Sir Trevor Chinn and Timothy Parker exercised options and acquired subordinated preference
certificates Foliowing the exercise of these options, there are no further options outstanding  Sir Trevor Chinn
acquired subordinated preference certificates at a cost of £1,131,235 Timothy Parker acquired subordinated
preference certificates at a cost of £4,524,936 Both acquired their holdings from existing holders

Dunng 2006, subordinated preference certificates were redeemed £952,813 of Sir Trevor Chunn’s subordinated
preference certificates were redeemed, realising a gain of £177,316  £3,811,250 of Timothy Parker's subordinated
preference certificates were redeemed, realising a gain of £709,264

Information on directors’ remuneration 1s as follows

20086 2005

£m £m

Total directors’ emoluments 16 14
Remuneration of the highest paid director 10 10

One (2005 one) of the directors 1s a member of a pension scheme to which the Group makes a contnbution

The services of Derek Elliott, Phulip Muelder and Charles Sherwood are provided by Permira Advisers Limited and the
services of Pevenl Hooper, Jonathan Kaye and Robert Lucas are provided by CVC Capital Partners Limited No part
of therr remuneration is specifically attnbuted to services to the Group Philip Muelder and Charles Sherwood have
an indirect economic interest in the B ordinary shares and the subordinated preference certificates held by Permira
funds The Permira funds hold 40 8% of the B ordinary shares and 42 9% of the subordinated preference certficates
Pevenl Hooper and Robert Lucas have an indirect economic interest in the B ordinary shares and the subordinated
preference certificates held by the CVC funds The CVC funds hold 40 8% of the B ordinary shares and 42 9% of the
subordinated preference certificates

35 COMMITMENTS
Operating leases

The Group had gross outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows

Land and buildings

2006 2005

£m £m

Next year 130 132
Second to fifth year from balance sheet date 498 518
After five years 528 621
115.6 1271

Vehicles

2006 2005

£m £m

Next year 21 22
Second to fifth year from balance sheet date 10 12
31 34

Land and buildings operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group on its property portfolio  The
average lease penod remaining 1s 8 years and rentals are fixed for an average of 5 years
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35 COMMITMENTS {continued)
Where a property 1s no longer used by the Group for operational purposes, tenants are sought to reduce the Group’s
exposure to lease payments Where the future minimum lease payments are in excess of any expected rental
income due, a provision 1s made At the balance sheet date, properties with gross future minimum fease payments of
£62 6m (2005 £73 7m) were included in the vacant property provision (see note 25)
The average lease penod for vehicles 1s 3 years and rentals are fixed for the duration of the lease
The Group had contracted with tenants for the following minimum lease receipts

Land and buildings

2006 2005

£m £m

Next year 43 36
Second to fifth year from balance sheet date 163 129
After five years 172 14 2
378 307

Property, plant and equipment commitments

At 31 December 2008, the Group had contractual commitments for property, plant and equipment of £0 8m (2005
£11m)

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Group entered into the following transachons with related parties who are not members of the Group
Joint Ventures and Associates Type of transactions - 20086 2005

income/{expenditure} and
receivable/(payable)

£m £m
ACTA SA Call handling fees {3.7) (32)
Amounts payable at 31 December - -
ARC Transistance S A Revenue 0.8 -
Registration fees {0.5) (03)
Amounts payable at 31 December {0.1) -
Deferred income at 31 December {0.8) -
Automobile Association Intermediary services provided 31 21
Personal Finance Limited Amounts receivable at 31 December 0.7 07
AA Financial Services Amounts receivable at 31 December’ 0.5 23

'Amounts recewable by the Group n relaton to the trade of AA Financial Services

Other related party transactions

The Group was charged monitonng fees and expenses of £0 2m (2005 £0 2m} by CVC with a balance outstanding at
31 December 2006 of £0 1m (2005 £0 1m) and £0 2m (2005 £0 2m) by Permira with a balance outstanding at 31
December 2006 of £0 1m (2005 £0 1m)

Related party transactions with key management personnel

Key management personnel compnse members of the Board and members of the executive committee The

remuneration of members of the board 1s disclosed under note 34 The aggregate remuneration of key management
personnel excluding directors 15 disclosed below

Remuneration of key management personnel 2006 2005

£m fm
Salanes and short term benefits 18 10
Post employment benefits 01 01
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37 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES

The pnncipal subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates at 31 December 2006 were as follows

Company

Subsidiary undertakings

AA SPC Co Limited

AA Junior Mezzanine Co Limited

AA Acquisiton Co Limited

AA Senior Co Limited

AA Corporation Limited

The Automobile Association Limited
Automobile Association Developments
Limited

Automobile Association Underwrniting
Services Limited

Volkswagen Assistance Limited

AA treland Limited

Automobile Association Insurance
Services Limited

A A Remsurance Company (Guemsey)
Limited

Taylor Price Insurance Services Limited
Prermium Funding Limited

Joint Ventures

Automobile Association
Personal Finance Limited
AA Financial Services

Associates

ARC Transistance S A
ACTA Assistance S A
ACTA Assurance S A
ACTASA

Country of

incorporation

England
England
England
England
England
Jersey

England

England
England
Ireland

England

Guernsey
England
England

England
(c)

Belgium
France
France
France

% holdings
in ordinary
shares

100
100
100
100
100
100

100
100
100
100
100
100

100
100

Principal activity

Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Roadside services

Roadside and other services

Roadside and insurance services
Roadside services
Roadside and insurance services

Roadside and insurance services

Insurance services
Insurance services
Insurance services

Personal Finance
Personal Finance

Roadside services
Reoadside services
Roadside and insurance services
Roadside services

(a) All principal undertakings are indirectly held by the Company, except for AA SPC Co Limited, which i1s a direct

subsidiary undertaking

(b) The subsidiary undertakings listed above are those which, in the opinion of the directors, pnncipally affected
the results for the year or the net assets of the Group All subsidiary undertakings have been included in the

conscohdation

(c) AA Financial Services ts an unincorporated joint venture in which the Group has a 50% interest  Its pnncipal
place of business 1s Capital House, Queen's Park Road, Hardbndge, Chester, CU88 3AN

(d} The percentage voting nghts are the same as the percentage holding in ordinary shares
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38 RECONCILIATION OF NET ASSETS AND PROFIT UNDER UK GAAP TO IFRS

The Group’s date of transition to IFRS Is 1 January 2005

IFRS 1 ‘First-bime adoption of Intemational Financial Reporting Standards’ provides a number of optional exemptions
to the general principtes of full retrospective application of IFRS  The Group has elected to take advantage of the
following optional exemptions from full retrospective application at the date of transition

Business combinations

A first ime adopter may elect not to apply IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ retrospectively to business combinations
that occurred before the date of transition to IFRS  The Group has elected to take advantage of this exemption
Busmness combinations that occurred before the date of transitien have been consolidated In accordance with UK
GAAP Any unamortised goodwill at 1 January 2005 has been recogrnised in the IFRS financial information at

amortised cost
Cumulative translation differences

The Group has elected to reset cumulative transtation differences ansing on the retranslation of foreign operations to
zero at the transiticn date

Reconciliations of UK GAAP to IFRS

The Group has prepared a reconciiation between the shareholders’ equity recogmised under UK GAAP and under
IFRS at 1 January 2005, the date of transition to IFRS  In addition, reconcihations have been prepared from the
latest UK GAAP financial statements prepared for the year ended 31 December 2005 to the restated IFRS financial
statements
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38 RECONCILIATION OF NET ASSETS AND PROFIT UNDER UK GAAP TO IFRS (continued)

Reconciliation of equity at 1 January 2005 (date of transition to IFRS)

Notes
UK GAAP Effect of IFRS
transition
to IFRS
£m £m £m
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Gooadwll ab,g 1,807 7 {112 8) 1,694 9
Intangible assets d - 70 70
Deferred tax asset b.n - 431 431
Property, plant and equipment d.f.g,h 822 260 108 2
Investment in joint ventures and associates b,h,I 44 (2 5) 19
Held-to-matunty investments 13 - 13
1,895 6 (39 2) 1,856 4
CURRENT ASSETS
inventones 60 - 60
Trade and other recevables b,g.hu 2311 {14 8) 216 3
Financial assets — short term deposits ) 1055 (96 7) 88
Cash and cash equivalents J 224 4 967 3211
Non-current assets held for sale h - 53 53
567 0 (9 5) 557 5
TOTAL ASSETS 2462 6 (48 7) 24139
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial habilthes b,g) (6 3} {24 B6) {30 9)
Trade and other payables bk (258 4) (6 0) (264 4)
Deferred income (269 3) - (269 3)
Current tax hability (17 9) - (17 9)
Current provisions m - {69 0) (69 0)
(551 9} (99 6) {651 5)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial liabilihes b.g {1,795 8) 71 (1,788 7)
Non-current provisions b,m (132 4) 569 {75 5)
Retirement benefit hability b,n (139 8) (45 B) {185 6)
{2,068 0) 182 (2,049 8}
TOTAL LIABILITIES (2,619 9) (81 4} {2,701 3}
NET LIABILITIES (157 3) {130 1) (287 4)
EQUITY
Called up share capital 01 - 01
Share premium 05 - 05
Retained earmings (157 9) (117 7) (275 6)
Hedging and translation reserve I - {12 4) (124)
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ DEFICIT (157 3) {130 1) (287 4)

48




AA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
38 RECONCILIATION OF NET ASSETS AND PROFIT UNDER UK GAAP TO IFRS {(continued)

Reconciliation of profit for the year ended 31 December 2005 {last UK GAAP financial statements)

Note UK Effect of IFRS
GAAP transition
to IFRS
£m E£m £m
Group revenue 0 756 1 {(10) 755.1
Operating costs before exceptional items and amortisation dfg,
of intangible assets k,n,0 (579 4) 70 (572 4)
Exceptional items p (123 4) 23 (121 1)
Amortisation of intangible assets d - {3 3) (33}
Operating costs (702 B) 60 (696 8)
Share of net profit of joint ventures lLo.q - 126 126
533 176 709
Share of operating profit of joint ventures r 145 (14 5) -
Non operating exceptional items p 113 (11 3) -
Profit before finance income/costs and taxation 791 (8 2) 709
Finance income 5 - 19 4 194
Finance costs g.n,0,s (209 5) (19 1) (228 B)
Loss before taxation {130 4} (7.9) (138 3)
Taxation 8,0 747 (6 8) 679
Loss after tax from continuing operations (55 7) (14.7) (70 4)
Loss for the year from discontinued operations o,p - 111 11
Loss for the year (55 7) {3.6) {59 3)
Reconciliation of statement of recognised income and
expenses for the year ended 31 December 2005
Actuanal gain recogrised in the retrement benefit habiity 151 02 163
Deferred tax ansing on actuanal gain in the retirement
benefit hlabiity (56) - {56)
Exchange translation differences 03 - 03
Gains on cashflow hedges | - 56 56
Recycled and reported in net profit on cashflow hedges I - (50) (50)
Deferred tax ansing on gains on cashflow hedges i - 35
Net income recognised directly in equity 98 43 141
Loss for the year (55 7) (3 6) (59 3)
(45 9) 07 {45 2)
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38 RECONCILIATION OF NET ASSETS AND PROFIT UNDER UK GAAP TO IFRS {continued)

Reconciliation of equity at 31 December 2005 {last UK GAAP financial statements)

Notes
UK GAAP Effect of IFRS
Transition
to IFRS
£m £m £m
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Gaoodwll c.q 1,8015 (106 6) 1,694 9
Intangible assets cd - 87 87
Deferred tax asset eln 1103 1103
Property, plant and equipment d.fg.h 718 81 799
Investment in joint ventures and associates | 34 {0 2) 32
Held-ta-matunty investments 13 - 13
1,878 0 203 1,898 3
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventores 79 - 79
Trade and other recevables g.e 284 4 (87 3) 197 1
Non current assets held for sale h - 11 11
Financ:al assets — short term deposits I 787 (64 1) 146
Cash and cash equivalents I 117 8 64 1 1819
488 8 (86 2) 402 6
TOTAL ASSETS 2,366 8 (65 9) 23009
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial habilites al (14 4) (21 1) (35 5)
Trade and other payables k {214 1) (2 0} (216 1)
Deferred income (267 7) - (267 7)
Current tax liability (19 1) - (19 1)
Current provisions m - {58 8) (58 8)
{515 3) (81 9) (597 2)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial habilities g (1,799 4) (9 2) (1,808 6)
Non-current provisions m {138 8) 58 8 (79 8)
Retirement benefit lability n {116 3) (31 2) (147 5)
(2,054 3) 18 4 {2,035 9)
TOTAL LIABILITIES (2,569 6) (63 5) {2,633 1)
NET LIABILITIES {202 8) {129 4) (3322)
EQUITY
Share capital 02 - 02
Share premium 08 - ce
Hedging and transtation reserve It - (80) (80)
Retained eamings (203 8) (121 4) (325 2)
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' DEFICIT {202 8) (129 4) (332 2)
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AA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
38 RECONCILIATION OF NET ASSETS AND PROFIT UNDER UK GAAP TG IFRS {continued)

Explanation of reconciling items between UK GAAP and IFRS

a) Under UK GAAP, goodwill ansing on the acquisition of the AA Group in 2004 was not amorhised This
goodwill amounted to £1,800 9m On transition to IFRS, the group takes full advantage of the exemption
from IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' provided in IFRS 1 *First-btme adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards’ and any unamortised goodwill at 1 January 2005 has been camed forward at
cost

b) As the acquisition of the AA Group took place in 2004, adjustments to the prowvisional fair values of
£6 8m have been reflected as at 1 January 2005 in these IFRS financial statements This increased the
deferred tax asset by £1 1m, reduced mvestments i joint ventures by £4 3m, reduced trade receivables
by £0 5m, increased trade payables by £4 3m, increased provistons by £12 1m, increased the
retirement benefit labiity by £3 Om and reduced debt by £29 9m due to the reclassification of fees

¢} Customer lists of £0 6m at 31 December 2005 have been reclassified as intangible assets

d) In accordance with IFRS, capitalised software costs have been reclassified from piant and equipment to
intangible assets The impact of the reclassification on transibon was £7 O0m (December 2005 £8 1m)
The software depreciation charge of £3 3m under UK GAAP for the year ended 31 December 2005 has
been reclassified as amorhisation with no net effect on the Group’s income statement

e} Under UK GAAP, a deferred tax asset (excluding that relating to the pension scheme liability) 1s shown
within current assets but is separately disclosed as an asset greater than one year Under IFRS, this
asset1s shown as a non-current asset or deducted from the deferred tax habsity At 1 January 2005,
£nil has been reclassified (December 2005 £80 3m) The adophion of IAS 12 has increased the
deferred tax asset by £nil (December 2005 reduced by £3 9m) Impact on the income statement in
2005 15 a reduction in the tax credit of £3 8m

f) Under UK GAAP, properties are valued using the exasting use basis  Under IFRS, farr value 1s the open
market value of the properties At 1 January 2005, properties have been reduced in value by £6 7m
{December 2005 £6 4m) and the mpact in 2005 15 a reduction in depreciation of £0 3m

q) A number of leases for commercial vehicles which were treated as an operating lease under UK GAAP
have been reclassified as finance leases under IFRS The impact of the reclassification at 1 January
2005 1s an increase in plant and equipment of £40 9m (December 2005 £23 7m), a reduction In
prepayments of £8 4m (December 2005 £7 0m) and an increase In financial habilities of £35 Om
(December 2005 £18 5m) For the year ended 31 December 2005, operating lease payments have
reduced by £16 8m, depreciation has increased by £14 3m and interest payable on finance leases has
tncreased by £1 8m

h} IFRS requires that non current assets that are in the process of being sold and meet certain cntena
detailed in IFRS 5 ‘Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations’ are reclassified as a
current asset At 1 January 2005, £5 3m of assets have been reclassified This balance compnses
investments In joint ventures of £2 4m, avaitable for sale investments of £1 7m (reclassified from
debtors) and properties of £1 2m At 31 December 2005, £1 1m has been reclassified from property,
plant and equipment

1) Pnor to the adophion of FRS 21 on 1 January 2005, under UK GAAP, dividends declared after the
balance sheet date by the Group's joint ventures which related to the previous financtal penod were
recognised as a receivable by the Group IFRS requires that these dividends are not recogrised unti)
the shareholder 1s entitled to receive the dividend At 1 January 2005, investments 1n joint ventures and
associates have increased by £4 2m with a coresponding decrease in trade and other receivables
There 1s no impact at 31 December 2005

1} Under IFRS, cash and cash equivalents include cash deposits with a matunty of less than three months
At 1 January 2005, £96 7m {December 2005 £64 1m) has been reclassified as cash and cash
equivalents with a coresponding decrease In financial assets — short term deposits

k) As part of operating lease agreements for buildings, the Group receives a number of lease incentives in
the form of rent-free penods Under IFRS, lease incentives are spread over the lease term  Under UK
GAAP, they were spread over the shorter of the lease term or the penod to the first rent review At the
date of transiion, trade and other payables has increased by £1 7m (December 2005 £2 Om) and other
operating expenses for the year ended 31 December 2005 have increased by £0 3m

1) At 1 January 2005, the Group recognised an addibional financial iability under tAS 39 of £12 4m
{December 2005 £11 8m) in relation to its interest rate swap denvative, an increase in the deferred tax
asset of £nid (December 2005 £3 5m) with a coresponding change in the hedging reserve  There was
no impact on the income statement relating to this adjustment  The share of profits from joint ventures
has reduced by £0 2m in the year ended 31 December 2005 following the adoption of 1AS 39

m} In accordance with IFRS, prowvisions have been split between current and non-current on the face of the
balance sheet At 1 January 2005, £69 Om (December 2005 £58 8m) has been reclassified as a
current provision
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AA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

RECONCILIATION OF NET ASSETS AND PROFIT UNDER UK GAAP TO IFRS (continued)

Explanation of reconciling items between UK GAAP and IFRS {continued)

n)

P)

Q)

r

s)
t)

Accounting for pensions in accordance with IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits' 1s different from FRS 17

‘Retirement benefits’ The main differences are

+ Under FRS 17, pension balances are presented net of deferred tax on the face of the balance
sheet Under IFRS these balances are shown separately, as a liability for the pension scheme and
as an asset for deferred tax  As a result, the Group's retirement benefit obligation at 1 January
2005 increased by £42 8m (December 2005 £31 2m) and the non-current deferred tax asset
increased by £42 Om (December 2005 £30 4m)

* Pension assets are valued at bid value under IFRS, whereas a mid-market valuation 1s used under
FRS 17

+ In the iIncome statement for the year ended 31 December 2005, operating costs reduced by £0 5m
and finance costs increased by £0 8m

Under IFRS, all results relating to discontinued operations are shown as one line on the income

statement In 2005, this reduced income by £1 Om, operating costs by £0 7m, share of profit of joint

ventures by £0 2m, finance costs by £2 9m and the taxation credit by £4 5m Exceptional items

ncreased by £9 Om

Non operating exceptional costs of £11 9m and the profit on disposal of joint ventures of £20 9m have

been reclassified as discontinued operations (see note 0) and the profit on sale of fixed assets of £2 3m

has been reclassified as operating exceptionals

Under IFRS, goodwill is allocated to segments At the date of transition to IFRS, the group performed

an impairment test on goodwill Following a decline in profitability in the Personal Finance segment,

goodwill allocated to the Personal Finance segment of £106 Om was tmpaired

The share of profit of joint ventures net of taxation 1s shown as a combined total in the income

statement In 2005, the taxation credit has been increased by £1 5m relating to the reclassificabon of

Joint ventures’ taxation

Finance mncome 1s presented separately from finance costs

Exchange differences arising on the retranstation of overseas operations must be shown in a separate

translation reserve At 31 December 2005, £0 3m 1s shown in the translation reserve with a

corresponding decrease In retained eamings

Explanation of mater:al differences to the cash flow statement for 2005

Receipts from the surrender of tax losses of £6 2m, iIncome taxes paid of £1 1m, interest received of £11 9m and
dividends received from joint ventures and associates of £9 4m have all been reclassified as operating activities
under IFRS but were included in separate categones under UK GAAP Cash and cash equivalents included £64 1m
that are classified as short term deposits under IFRS There are no other matenal differences between the cash flow
statement presented under IFRS and the cash flow statement under UK GAAFP
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF AA LIMITED

We have audited the parent company financial statements of AA Limited for the year ended 31 December 2006 which
cecmpnse the Balance Sheet and the related notes These parent company financial statements have been prepared under
the accounting polictes set out therein

We have reported separately on the group financial statements of AA Limited for the year ended 31 December 2006

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
The directors’ responsibiliies for prepanng the Annual Report and the parent company financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and United Kingdorn Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)
are set out 1n the Statement of Directors’ Responsibiities

Our responsibility 1s to audit the parent company financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements and Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) This report, including the opinion, has been
prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985
and for no other purpose  We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any
other person to whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our pnor
consent i writing

We report to you our opinion as to whether the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view and whether
the parent company financial statements have been propery prepared in accordance with the Comparnies Act 1885 We
also report to you whether in our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report I1s consistent with the parent company
financial statements

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, the Company has not kept proper accounting records, If we have not received
all the information and explanations we require for our audt, or if nformation specified by law regarding directors’
remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed

We read other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it1s consistent with the audited parent
company financial statements The other information compnses only the Statutory Directors’ Report, the Chairman’s
Foreword, the Chief Executive’s Review of the Business and the Finance Director's review We consider the implications for
our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or matenal inconsistencies with the parent company financial
statements Our responsibilities do not extend to any other information

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing
Practices Board An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the
parent company financial statements It also includes an assessment of the significant esimates and judgments made by
the directors in the preparation of the parent company financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropnate to the Company's circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit $o as to obtan all the information and explanations which we considered necessary In
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the parent company financial statements are
free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregulanty or error In forming our opinion we also
evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the parent company financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion

* the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice, of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2008,

+ the parent company financial statements have been propery prepared in accordance wath the Compantes Act 1985,
and

« the information given in the Directors' Report 1s consistent with the parent company financial statements

u’
r.u-éﬁfwarw

PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London

28 February 2007
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AA LIMITED

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER 2006

Notes Company Company
2006 2005
£fm £m
FIXED ASSETS
Investments in group undertakings m 05 05
Fixed asset investments v 01 01
06 06
CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors — Amounts due from group undertakings v 03 02
NET ASSETS 09 08
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital 27 02 02
Share premium v 08 08
Profit and loss account v {01) (02)
EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS Vil 09 08

The fin4 atementSorpages 54 to 56 were approved by the board of directors on 28 February 2007 and were

signeqon its behalf by

SIR TREVOR CHINN
DIRECTOR

The notes on pages 55 to 56 form part of thege financial statements




AA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
{ ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable UK accounting standards and under the
histoncal cost convention and the Companies Act 1985 The pnincipal accounting policies, which have been applied

on a consistent basis with the pnor penad, are set out below

Basis of preparation

Under section 230(1) of the Companies Act 1985, the Company 1s exempt from the requirement to present its own

profit and loss account The Company 1s also exempt from the requirement to prepare a cash flow statement under
FRS 1 (Rewised) The financial nsk management policies are consistent with those of the Group and are descnbed

on page 8 of the Finance Director's Review

The Company 1s exempt from the requirement to disclose related party transactions with other group undertakings
under FRS 8 which cancel on consoldation

Investments
Fixed asset investments are included in the balance sheet at cost, less any permanent provisions for impairment
Treasury shares

Where the Company purchases or funds the purchase of the Company's share capital, the consideration paidis
shown as a deduction from tota! shareholders' equity

() DIRECTOR'S EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of directors are disclosed in note 34

{1 INVESTMENTS IN GROUP UNDERTAKINGS

Cost £m
At 1 January and 31 December 2006 0s

A list of subsidiary undertakings is included in note 37

(1v} FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS

2006 2005
£m fm
Investment in subordinated preference cerificates 01 01

In 2005, an employee share trust was established to operate the employee share ownership plan, under which
the trust holds shares and subordinated preference certificates on behalf of participating employees The
investment in subordinated preference certificates relates to loans made to the trust to enable it to repurchase
the holdings of participating employees who have left the Group

v) DEBTORS

The amounts owed by group undertakings are unsecured, have no repayment terms and bear interest at 16 5%

{v1) RESERVES

Share premium Profit and Loss Total

£m £m £m
At 1 January 2006 08 (02) 06
Profit for the financtal penod - 01 01
At 31 December 2006 08 {0.1) 07
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AA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE COMPANY BALANCE SHEET (continued)
{vur) RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT IN SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS

2006 2005

£m £m

Profit/(loss) for the financial year 01 {0 1)
issue of ordinary share capital - 04
Net increase in shareholders’ funds 01 03
Shareholders’ funds at 1 January 08 05
Shareholders’ funds at 31 December 0.9 08

(v}  GUARANTEES

The Company’s assets have been provided as secunty for bank loans provided to three of the Company's

subsidiary undertakings, AA Junior Mezzanine Co Limited, AA Acquisition Co Limited and AA Senior Co Limited
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